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e,sitco6

@glozoC gdol€zr, eo@co g

OgfozoJ gCo€zo oocooo 2019 oqoloaU 31 Qonrrf goanf 06oo coEoJ g gerr gzororr

coo oOmd ooandzo oc dcocgan gOornc 8@aqO 2018 q.zo 19 q6a dcdzo Eocgrn

orrod 12Or,: Oolrldco gzocdO Eoazoc8od OcUncO

l. 9er gzsccotr)

1.1 gzlco BorOanc,3

@glo?riJ oeo{co@zo es@coo@ ("co@ccoo") 2019 oqeo(oag 31 Q-o pgr ara}zr}o

$zocoa2tco eoo dQot:laf qOeorrf O6eec,s eoqoc Q Eaj65<g qcqcos@ gzilccazro3, E@zsr€>

oOmai8o@ gzorsa?tco eoto dQozrra'I qOeorrl Obeco eoqoc pqglgOcro gzorcc:zrco eoto pg>

92orco2t OgO qqcg eoOtoaf, ern6tocncnat Olqcori EgOzoO<r g6oof6o@zrJ esgrrfEar

2019 oqeo19O5 31 Qorrrzrl gOeozlf OSesc^3 eoqorc Q ge> gzr:rs)r'.: @ 6l.zorc Adcnczri$zor

eo@ceSOcQ e3:lddooi qc<dflp@ O>OoidcoO 154(1) O>OoJdcO eog@ eeooc,siszlO 6co8c,:

ga 2018 E"^ 19 q6a dcdzo Eol{52t onoai @coa} EOcarc^r coOonJ Eco<6ace zodzr

eQ. qrcdQp@ O>OaJdcoO 154 (6) OrsOaiOcO gzocdO gcocr} OcSarcO codc zocAoodQ

oc5@o@afr;oO eeoccozl zodp etoD.
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1.2.

q)

Oaco BocOtrrc,c ooE!ft, oQtlrg

6 e'r,r 6'gozordcr g@d 01 E 32 o9q.o gr.,n6o g@zi:oceE 90 q ft6 qoaddc ogQ o1d

ozrJzo@, 0cr6@, qcqccog oc Ocoq@ ocrJeo Ego ^d 
geo gzb)cse?r og gQ8ooi ozrczi)€

SA goq oe@cg)o E8:rJ 8€oO€?rJ 67. 13,604,379 d Q oOogq 6(n@LE O1d ocrJeo

ooogq <rcocr,l6, a6 ocdeaaog. 6t. 14,875,643 nl Q qoarzoJal glFco gq o1d ocrJe

gdzs:al etFc.: ge tod ocJeoc,soE 8eo zod 6Q6. @o ggordo goar: zorescocgocoE d1.

2I,751,560 261 9 a6 gceE@ osje6 oo?rrczo:@ c6c-:E@ ard ocrjoceo EgD zod pg>
gzorcazr 06 qnloc 609 qz:ld ooarzil <rce E@corrJ, 6,o8zl oco8g, ddod qccenzl ogo
ooEco gz:2 ootrrczo@ roc oozlnJ ex5cnoazrfo oo8co 94 ocrJecozrf o2p,67.237,515,813

n a6 ocrJee OO2rczog q elOd AO 682r,jee{6c^r Dco.

(+r) @ e"^, Egozoo<r 9@6 02 gpo 88o1co ooJ q{o 6,ogDB qooconl qQ qocoo

qOeszrf o?trcoco 9e> gzoroarrrOg q1nl86 Sb2 QOaJ qoBoOg zo5@ca,Jzloc6coO qOeorl

ozrcco r2g OOarczsr@ argz::coa :o76, 86A7a 61.6,047,766 a g.8ozrfd1 o6)cco q$zlEl

1,556201 s)c O8aczo@ argzrcsrnr oarcold g"8orrfd1 o?rog) q8n@ 555 ?oJ E

oocogcrrfmdlO zo6gczrfzlcac6coO OOrrrczs:@ ergzrcon en16' 61.1,043,529 zs,J OOalc

q@zrrd ozslcoai 17 nl q oOarczo@ ?DS6)x@6) oocrold q@n:d ozocOsi 225 nl q Qoo 68
z$59czrJz::s)cAcoO OOarczo@ eog?ic{ozD ar16 q326,940 mJ OOmc cozllg q@od ozocOaj

I37 61 6L.I95,746 nJ OOarc Oc?t?f: g9ad ozoroOoi 25 El , O8aczorg ng?rccoal o.?iceo16

corrlg g@nd ozorcOad 35 26'I elc OctDa q@ard ozorcOaj 41 mJ , 6r. 13,533,994 a
O0rrrczor@6d gA qggor5 oc qlgdig gO> oarcor ent 67.89,690nf OOarc €ocgctr)5 o?ro(n

cea:cQ Oa6 6 8O Oeod 28 gzsl@Q EeaJ ozr:cOzl obco o1016 arE?rf ozr)cDco qE /6,ear

@<6,6)e3 E 606.

(+r) 6 e.^t pg> Oc5atai'6<5 g@d 09 oco8 5.5.15 oeBqco gzorcdo oO€Q aoc qoarzs;aJ

eiScs Se Qt ocrJeco Oat 67.1,197,235,517 qar.l 68ogQ qoednlSzr <6ce qgco ggco

(Expected credit loss method) Oo acEm'66 o1g89 8g^g gA go6f doad Sgzod

ozrc6@qq ftEzri eo@cogJEn Odeood gcarcorl oO€Q oc qomzo.2ai er5cs Se Qz

ocJecobJ q8CI€6?rco 6 646.

@ e"^r 66Ozodcr 9@6 16 E 50 arc 51 odq qpO arcEr:ceO cop gOm Oalzo:@Og

Sozorcgco oc58zoo eo@cogJolrl:o mt6 dgqc8 Sozocgconl giadno@zrf 6J 66 6.6oo9
qiadn:o@rrfq oozreonl ogeo 6g9cobr zo€ €z:: Ece. dooJ Qoal szorqo 6L.256,221,539

(t,r)
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e)

nl Q oSocod onJzoo q8z:r@ 156781eeggSoocorrf nleco E d@oq oe@g5<Socoaf nfec^:

92013 o5eooi 8o 2019 oqcoloa5 31 qnlor oc8r:c 66 ELE ?rgd 9@6o: gzocdo

bOSe zsrd eJOcoc,J dgqcE SOzorcgco ro@cogCOa a a6 orlc6@6.

@ e"^, dgozoocr 9@6 2r ga,fio d8ce@ ooEgnl BgzodB gorrr QrrroojQ qqre

Eo{oa EE@co qEocbrco qeo o1g8ce ge gobJ cogoro Qad$zolzooo$ .oogfo@

zoSgcrrJz:rs?rgc O>coadco eoEalr 2016 oUeao,SQ Eo{cflco eoreJoggzo,rdioOzs;O oolO:l gq

oOcg5 19,180,692 zo qnldzocdg 9S€?tJ eo@cogJ8o olesaa qqcg ozocOes ozor$ocorr

co:r o1o Egoo @cd168o@Q r€.q€o 8gg Qoce qpo Eo{oa o6@co qaorzrco

o.e8@ oopoo o&eo qoeoczrr E6@ce E€oczrco qgo ozor8ocozr o3?r olo E€@o
@cdlzord 606. d q€o qoj6zs:cd@ <8.6@aJ q.210,519,165 nl gcdlzorg ga gobj

61.217,134,563 zo'l @cd1 68@ oula2oo:rf q.6,616,398 zol ol8ocezrJ ozoSocoa cozrr o1o

Egoo E€o oa E 606.dood@ 8c^rc,ro 10 zo dqoc ol8o@ gse s ozo:6og)?r c,3?t)

OrO E€OO qEog oAoSAO 8Sg Qzroo$Q Eo{oe E6Oco q€erbco gpO Ocdl zD€ S6J

Ec^:. eJ qpo d1.70,172,722 nl gcdl zD€ se Qoni o5eo qoeocn Eo{oa E6ocs q€o3?5rq3

qqo 67.72,378,788 zoJ ozo8ocl?r ozr o(c E€@o @cd1 68g otrJr;oorrJ 61.2,205,466

zo'i oltocozrldgoora E 64,&.

2il5@crrJr:@cgc ar8zod<5 O>ceadco eoEtoc eo@co@, Eo{ca m@ezrJ oqec6z:lo@rrfqO eo@eo

916 zordoozt 6A€ oco EEgo@ 2.04 oeBqco gpO O>coadco ee@OzrJO Eo{ca es@eroJ

oqocSQoorrJao E8zrl qdm Scog Ecoqo, do@ EE@co Eogzlcoq ee@ccllg E8zrl ql8co

Se Ecs. d qAO garz:: O>coadc,oO EE,€O 2019 oqeol@Ag 31 QarO oo6co Se 6cs

osJeeco @ e"^r EgOzod<r g@d 21 E 23 oeBqco gzs:cdO OSeeco qOeocz::oog Eo{oa

E6oce qpoczrc^:o qoco zord Eqgooz:: zrr€ gz:Jco. o@ qpo 2013 8o 2019 oSeoco qaloc

0o69 ogeo E.Eg@ G)zr zo€, gr2 Eo{oa EE@c^: qaeJc2' Eogaroc$ qEnzord ogolg ozl

6L,1,649,29I,23581 E€g aa r..,t6 orrlc916 a(EzrJ dg oOoczorgo es@clrl g@c,crcodrrf

esoccoo@E oco69 qQooal qnloc 6@gi qad o@ 6'ern2079 6qociral geEg q8o<Earco

ooaraiDo ogeo <85909 ogoc oarc@16 Eooal oSeooi eo?rco q dg g@c<6ocozd qE

o66)ci A 646.

@ e"^, E.$Ozs:Ocr 9@6 36 E 12 (?3) oeBqco gzo:cdO 6d@coo eO6:r ,eafg Eg eoqor

alcEat6<x steS@ 8g^g gA gOE gdOgco E8?r^J 4.15,445,587 nl 8BO1co Q Qr-
8EO 6B zo:5@crrJaolcgco ooar :c,fiQ q1E 2014 o5eood @gQcoaf q8ai @o ozs:JrrJ

8dg@ coofgco, ozorg,O zor5@caJor@cgcoO eeD 689 eoqtoc 2011 eJzrOcB 20 Qrrr zoCAS

(5)
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esqa@o @sQoai q.t04,r77,77g Elooarc ocoicoo gg 6go0 J;", ozorcs@ 438

zo:59czrJr:@rQcoo pd OOrlczol@ 61.2,275,000 zoi Om osaig 4n! oc esgOafoocorrl eg

qpO zoOge 66 oac6@6.

ObeooalQ 61.9,932,709,286a ozs':c:rfgcof OOaczogzoO 689@ozl E 2019 oqeoi@O6 31

Qzr:O d1.11,671,726,295ni Olco zod Ae.Eg qzs:d O>oadoog 9Qd8O bOge o@ Om EO

@cocaf@zo zord@af o1046. Obar@cznooi gQoOzr o@@ zo:5@crfr:cacgcO 6@ Eogrrl og
,ozrJg oc8acoco q€o Qzrzoo es@col@o Q-d 66 €o5 400,000 zoJ qosa)s ao

qladr:o@zrl6J a6 646. O6orOcmooi qo@oOg,oocog,czrfzrdlO,Qom oc ozo:cg@ corrr

qoara2al $coczs:c8 zo5@czrJors:tgt 04 eoqoc qccoarrrcoO dr:4 ap, enTE ooqdzol Qcod

68 g@c6cs @o& 200,000 nJ o@<r Ozrr Ol8zrf o9@ OCgfo@ cordg eo9g5<r

OcBnrOoosal ocEnc zoe, ozlced AO 66nteqce Eco. d qpO ee8zo 6 qr9 o@@ coalg

eeqarc @ g.zo:r 8.5@5''6{6 9@6 36 S 12 (6) oegqco gzocdo at6)r)t6<5 G]1@g9 ggzo:d

ozlc6@6.

(,e) goBoog 68 zorSgczrjzlorcgcoo qocdc og eelog@ eJzozo':co (uPS) @gQ coldo@

E <699 88m1@oorrf elg qo>zofe @<dogco EBrrJ oc^l qoe.e 680 6eoc eoleggzodl

E8?tJ d1.@@cozr 40zsr qgco eCec es@co@O dodEO arQ oOdc 60€ gard eg

es@orrfoooszd @ e.^, 6€@zod6 god 37 a 86 oeBqce gzocdo Sg>
gzsrcozrOg esOozrf @a8?rl oor@qdO zod oncdQ6.

ee@cogC8rr o5egoci ozor8oo?n co6) oro eg E(a€6f d1.805,860,I4961 olcozd:@

O>cead 3?ti 6O zord 6@oq eo@g5<r 68o@ estodzorconl orlcgl$g @rl Og OOmczog

gccrlOdar 6890 bOge zod ozrcdQ.&. zlOq d@ oaJeco A€ gre€d go@oOg 68
zo5@crrfargecgcoo es.oSoa o>coadco oopoorrf eo@cogC8zl a5eaa qaloc

Q.71,342,562ni Ecoq9 zo:d O>coadce 6@zord 6A<6 q O>coad q gccrlOdn 68@0

bOge zord oarcdQ6.

pg> r:nJzrlO gzorccraooci EicJcOd Oz:'Jzo@ 6t. 6,065,801,0892o OOaczot@zoj oozrfpg

zorgq a$dcOd OzrJzsr@ esgOrrJOoc^r:rf oslsdzo eoar>cerac^:zof zod ozrrcdQ qzs:d, 68 oBQ

arOofzi; zodar gq e'iOcOd Oa}zo@ oglOaconl q ee@co@ EBzrJ esOztJOc oarco2tfmc Oi8zrf

aiOcOd Oafzor@ Og 8BO1co, o1O1nf9, zsleco o6zlc.: 669 gOal zodzr: gq Ozs.Jzorg Og

86o1ce qcQoceE dOdQarcoco Eol€6mociQ eo4Qqccezo ogeo e8esioc zog ozrralld Ece .

(r)

(i l)
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(O) 9e> gzo:tcam qAO .d.rg 86coar 6,an,6a esgOrrJo g6oaf6ocoE ococCzrrl<B@, 86osa

ac 6,ams6<6., @a?D?tr<dc oc esE68@, Eq>acoc6 6,aa66. ogJo5 dd, o@og@ oc

6,etr'.6a osar zr:c6cocg, g,esafi6corrfd dgqc8 8Eo zoceco dcrJ8zlO qzolOc ozrc$Ag
qz:rd ee@coo@ gderafd qpO o@COU 6O Og dgqc8 SEzr zs:cgco ggdrg 08 8O15 qnlOc

BOzrJ oocogczrlardlO 68 zorS@czrJrroacgcoO aiOcOd OaJzorO oglOmco gpO o@CObdO

og dgqc8 8Ea zorcgco gQdrS 04nl ogeo ocoar OrJzorg nloce a6 q1E OO $Szsleogco

Ece. d qpo eogcoog mlece g6oal6ce daJEo omcEgmld8zsloctco Eco.

zo:) eogcogC8a OSeod gOczl zo:c6cocgoo$ qOoerrf o?rccD n2g, 67.4,263,86920: Oflarczorgdal

sa 6zf)bJ oarco:r: ftsdt@ go> oarco q,67.46,r62:n oonczo:@6od ga Eqnl oacoar
esc@crt> oztccD q oOdar OO 68nJee<6,s I qz:rd q1gd1@ gO> gOeozrJ Or:cOO l3zo:zd g

Qorl:ri ogO oeod 04 8o oe:d 09rl zorcgcoa'f qalOc tocDzlc orlczod o1oq6. eec@cn>

obrctco ggdr$ 77 aJ e46& OO 68mlee6,e I qnd o@9 obocr e-.cEncoO 6n omco16

ar82tf OO ggc<6oco::.1ozlco qEo<5arco E dAG.

(a,t) 2019 pg> gzo)colco e€ 6;ear ob)cco oOpoOrrf 6L. n,A96,362a oOafdSOmJ Egzord

qlE qa6 o99 oorrJ68@ a2g grsdr@ go>, oscgca)5 @E)c@, g"8orfd1 ozrcg) eka€d E

646. oo q€o, o@g 6,e' o6)cc0 eo@oajooc,srrf o6nJeeg Bg afi o@Eo ga
dgCcBaI ooal qcozo 6 ro1d,@ Sgozrrczod oncooc^:rrf qOzod oorrfoc 606. dg
OOarczor@ eoqaoo eooCOzr q Eco6zr Qa,e O 2022 ae1esac@O5 30 Qo Om EO6J

Eo<5:lco oOn gQBonl a6 oare6@6.

( orr) 2016 a5ecnO ood 8O elOzrr dzr ocEzrrcoO onccorrfarc 61. 15,699,277 d OOmo

668O gigdr@ 6ogC a7@ l7,750zo} qoBoog zorSgcrrl?r(orecoo elodcoq 20lg
oQa:1@O5 31 QnO c9Oc cogfolzrr Ec^: oarco oe€o tog?trcooln omcdQ6

(,tr) es9coo9 pg> zlrlolO gzocoazlco eogeo gQ6ern} zodzrr gq 6,oogfOzlco qpo 2019

oqeel@O5 31 QmO dedocqa ob)rcl OOrs:czog Qrar dB zo5@c:rfzacl:cgooD

67.18,682,897 al q, ozorrg,@ 68 zorS@caJzlcargcoO 67.32,549,875 al w SgAei g"@oci

Qrtrdr@ orlccDos q.10,327,I48 zol E O2t z:lpd d@ Szol OzoJ 6B zo:5@caft:loacgcOg

6edocq:l Egoog oeeJc q1E qOeocar ddocqa o'ztco OOrrrczog 8@oo@rl

q.24,578,706 nl q ,67.66,693,720 El at Q.44,0I7,045 nJ Ece.d qpo 2019 oqo:1@O6

31 Qzlo pg> gzs:ccanood pg> arr}rJo gzorcca:locf at EB zor5@czrJa cecgcog dedocqrrr

8gosl17
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6)

r8'5oog oeoc 916 qoeoczl 6dercqa: o6)co ooz::czorg qzld B@oo€?rf q.5,g95,g09 zo:

,67.34,743,845 zs: ac Q.33,689,897 zo: oOzr:eszsf E6nlee{5co Eco.

zor6gcrrloo:cgc 9e> gzorse?r qao sg oOarczsrg 61.5,554,48761 Qocorrf

67.I,264,0402o oOaresnl 6Snlegc^: Ece.

( 6) eo@co@ EBzrJ Eo<6:lcoo gQBe r! r;t6a e q EgbJ 68o0 dooqzrr qgo addcO 6 stTaleso2

oerc@ oozrrczog 6(.21,871,329n1 eoE eogcogc8o oSeeooj ge> gzo,roemcoaJ$ dg
OOo:czor@ 61.19,921,7142s1 ogeo qzsloc 659 ouJzi;oozrf ooc@ qcqcce@ dt.I,g4g,61526l

qQoozrf q 2019 oSeco eoqoc pg> gzocoa:rrcoafE qizs'l8ce gq oocgS zllzrfea2 ooc@

ooarczor@ 6L.20,585,779d Oco sa gos ge> gzocg)2') qao dg oozrrczog

61.23,178,274n1 Qocozrf q.2,593,0952o1 ol8oc^:rrJq ger gzo:ccaz:rogo ooa q16 aoq
66zoegc,:8cs.

( e) ozocg@ zor6gcaJarsacgcOO qEc€ q.zo 2065230 qdar g.zoc p1.2q e5.oEl 6gOO ror

qo@oOg zo:5@cafz::s)cgcO eoqeoc q"zn: 134-1-00L-2-2083302 q6ul @oe5n O1.zf2 e5.og

E€oo qqc€o oloze eoleog@ gzo:co 6o<6arcso 9Q6ool n6 oanE@qs qbrd ocrfte

eeztcdzt €8 qeo o1.zs2 ocrJoco 8@oo@lrl d1.3,050,80r, at 67.70,996aJ 6.o.

( d 2020 a5eao."i gd 30 Qzn zogf 86@0 6c,s@zr 67.72,662,825b19 oocgS nlrrlo4oo
gqcg ooc@co, g15co gq oa:c@co oee6 o?rcoeszrfoc arlr:'ferJ 6€@0 od68@ 6eec

oocg5 zllafer2oo ooaczo:o qtco<62::aco E 6@gj qz::d gl5cega2 ooc@co do
O8zlczo@:sJ c,ear co€6ztce E 6@6. broq 2020 aeso6Q 

^C Soda Qc2zs:c@ar aidcOd

alrrferz:; ocJeco eoqtoc glFco gr,2 67.4,097,600n ooc@co Q €r5ce 94 ooc@ce oaj

oancooafOc zrrlalo4 osJecoO ttd 68g 6esc Qqzn:c@ar ojdcOd orlrrloz:2 ocrJeeco

gEo<5armco E glFcs gr2 ooc@c^r O@ OOarczo@af6,ezl io<,r'(n E 60,&.

Q oOrlnl <rcoE@ ocrJe eoqoc zsrcg EcrJogle<6c.:ni Eo<Emc^rO gQBoaJ zord oacdQqg

ftErrf Qc2zo:c@zro 6OgC omcorl ocJeo 8@Oqo eea2Qqccozor ogeo er8nleec 68@0

ooce16 Ecs.

(,'ti) Og eoqalc oOrrJdBO ocr}esco ag 2000 OSecoo oerd 8O olOzr 8a 67.8,425,296n

qcqcco@ ag eC 9eC oOpoOai Q oorrJd8g o(rJece?f"l eslOd qad dO ocrJeoc^: 6OgC

68O0 bOga2 zs:d oarr6@6.
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{ct)

'ozorc) 
oe@ccoo@ gOczrr zn'rcSoscgoosE 61.9,583,244a 6qoccnnl ozorc:rigcof zllzrlaro2 osJeoco?rf

Oesd 5zoO o1E OOacr..,t@ 67.6,756,05926'l $arg Scocoo 70.5zol g qnd d@ zrlrrfozil

qcqccooo a\E@ 8€aq zo:g@r'czord<6co 8o: qooczlce ococp zod ozlc6@6.

rozo:C) eoocogC8ar oesoS 67.67,714,81261 g Egco g9gt:u qcgo<5m gecoco o5eoocj Ee€o
S8Olocorri qQzord 6A€ 6eec Ezo2gi@ 8BO1c,: Sg OOmczo.rO.J qQ E 6A6.

ozocgo A6 zo5gczrJr:@cgcoo ooed 10 926.lg9 oo€Q <5,roc,LE oOzlczs:g

6L.12,081,861zoj oa qnd dco pd oogE .<5,co(r'16' oOmczoo@zrf Solcoo 5d. es@ca1@

E8rrf o9@ QEzorcgcenl gdc oodzrr e6co ocrje q.oafi o16@0 boge zod orlc6@q9

qrl6 aeo6 5-10 qnd ooarczo@ 61.75,075,7862s1q or':s6 1-5 q6)6 ooarczo@

61.33,113,94r I Ead d@ oozrcng gd oo€Q <r';iotE oomczaro@zrf 8@oo@zrl

Scscoo 6nl oc 8cocoo l3al Eco. o@ qpo ogg 6co ocJo qcozord crndg q8dcrJ8ar oo
66nleeoco ozo:o5.

( or) o'zorcgO 68 zoS@caJncecgcoO qa}dzocdg, rrlafor2 aoc zo@zri ooEoog ftegzd oesd I

8O Oesd 13 qnlOc 9 6r.I,484,000201 OOarczo@rrf 94 ocrJeo 6'A}C afi a7E@O zorOg4

zo:d oacdQ€ q?td di.150,0004:l OOrlc nlrrfo4 A76 ocrtearonl z:11:rfo4 a6 ocdea66

EgO zord qnloc 6@6.

( or) toc<dococdocd Eo{oa es@eal oqec6no@zr}4oO qo>zolo dzr:dcglocrJ 2022 eoleir,tl9O6

08 Qzrad q"zo TO/REVl05l33l06 coar @8coo qpo 68 zsrS@crrJzrcacgc r::Ezo:d<6

O>cesadco a:qtoc 6}Oc Q q.6 oco gq@af ?rc8zirc ozlczo:drl eq 66 osJeec,3 @r: qcszodzrr

eq ArQg coca*4O (commitment charges) q.56,821,72lr,1 gO Q ge> ga,,rcorarOg dg

OaE@ E.gOoz:r zod omc6@.&.

(,rz) 9o@o06l zor6gcaJor@rec 9er5 gzs:cozlcozlfE oogq toc qo?rz6J ol <f,iocr,1E ocrJeos

67.89,206,616n1 QOq 6csa7E zorcg Ecfogle<6oci dzoa2O 67.50,992,402n1 Eco.e9 qpo
q38,214,214 zor oOmesnl dSnlecsce Ece.

Qozrr zo59czlfzloac6c pg> gzoccamcoaJE oo€Q <rr.o6lE oaJeoc^r 6r.264,324,904n1 Qoq
qoot4 zorcg EcrJo6le<6 qpO Aa 61.262,523,544 ml 6c^l.eJ qpO d1.1,801,360 zo-r

oOmesmj 68nle<6co Ece. gQ8oni zodm gq 61.262,523,544b5 g oOgQ 6(i@tE

(, l)
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E)

ooarczor@zrf oeod 05 gzrl@g ooo€E <6,io(elE @6!?e o8mczo@ 67.6,345,394 Eco. og@

<6co qcozord arE@O es@cco@ 68 @coc9c5ro alEgdzrf oncdO dg opoqpzordlOzrlO

arogdonl ECI€@ Sgzo:d 60gi qz::d o@ogeo d@ Ezo)gg@ eoqarc qpg16co, c6co Ezqg@

E@co, 6co dzo4 68o@ zoceco gcQco 8@aq oncdzs)di q 8cocrrlcoo gQ8oai zo:d

oarc6@6.

oocglcraroOg eonJnlO qtat6 dedocqacoadoci 2019 oqe.ll@ag 3lQrslo oO€Q <r,cbcn..E

osJeeco oa: Q.3,305,948 49 eozfzilo gt:crlc6 <tr,o(r,t6' o6Jeec,3 6L.1,I22,3952u1 g qr:d dco

pe9 oOgq 6G@tE oaJeeoc62tJ ScocoO 38zol Ec^:. o@@ Gc,scrld ocJeoco Oesd 15zol gdc

qaa6 o1690 eoocoo hoga2 zod omcd4&. q.4,648,46361 Q gocom <r'oIDLE

octJeeco OCId 10-152il zr.roeozl) 8O elOn dzr qzrrd Sco pd gOco:l €6cocor8c6?5JoarJ

oOrrczo:ooaf Ecoc^:o 46al 6rr . o@9 <Eco qcozo'rd co16@ q8dcrJOzs: oo d8nleegco

ono5.

9e> gzoro:mOg eoOoof q.^ 14.1 coOonJ EgOEzl Og OrJzo@ o6to 67.256,269,70181

qnloc qd qzrd d@ EgoEzr og onlzo@ ct<*,6)6 66ogQ @6rcc) o0z1166@ ogo gqcg

Eg@Eo ade orrr 67.1,693,491d omoolgS@ orJ4ooaf Eg@Ezr og oojzor@

67.I,693,4916:ri 6,em c;.'.<x'r)cn E 646.

9e> gzoro:a:oceE gzrfar5corr ejnEr.l oocOarlEo@ Og OOmrzorg e,sger dzrl OzoJ

zsrS@crrfngacgc Eg@o g e1tEro ococcarldog o$ o8arczog eoleoQo@Q qo@oog 6B

zorS@crrfn@cgco, oercogczrfzrrdlo AB zo:5@cofnocgco ?tr oocglorooog

zsrS@czrJzrclareo corr) dqgoog dzora2o 67.465,989201 ooareozoJ dSzslegce Eco.

(E)

(a)

( ut) 2019 oqeol@ag 31 Qao eopO8rr mieeco oOmczo@ pg> zlzrJnJo gzocoazlocg oOarzr q.z6

3 qAO 6L.3,214,024,191 zoJ Om ogzt} Eo<6nrc.:O EAO OQ:s:O dO ocrJeecs

6L.3,217,236,716 z6J g a(E?rJ 6r.3,212,5192or oOmeszo'J 68mleoc^: Ece

(xtJ) 2019 oqeol@ab 31 QzlO 6B zorS@caJarsacec mEzod<6 O>ceadco toc OCgfo@ zrrO

zsrS@cafarc:cgc O>coadco co?t <5co OlOeoOtoai 02 A €6co ocJecorrJ oc<dOcoc6

Oc6acOO gpO 8€oO€nJ d(.5,685,332,903 at 67.9,840,374,273 g qnd e.:@ccoog

pg> gzo:co::l OgO qpo 68 zor5@cafzro:3ec r>Em6<x O>coadco arc OOglcog mO

zoSgczrfarocgc O>coadce 66 ocJeeco?tJ 8€oo€rrJ 6L.6,632,493,444 elr
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67.1r,782,003,429 Eco. eJ qpo 8@oo€?tJ 6r.947,160,541n at 67.1,941,629,156a

oOrs: eizor g 6 6nlee gco E co.

(c orc) pqgl q@c?tr:co@ooi oc<dococd ogotog@ oqoc6ao@zrf4oo qar5@ eftrlfugjoctJ 2022

€o(eizt(945 08 Q:r16 g"zor TO/REV105133106 qdm @8coo qBo 68 zorS@czrforcacgc

zrrEzodcr O>cesadco coOoal eo@cogJEo OSeoci qOcrrJ Q:r:O oco8co 54 6os ocrJeco

67.5,476,523,562 z6i gobJ es@coo@ pg> gzo:co e€ e)co 6L.6,632,493,444 25.I ogeo

qlnl8o@rrJ Og osJoc,s 61.1,755,969,882 nl qtco<5aco E 6@6. eopO8zr oorEco ga2

ooc@co g dr.886,4r2,722 nl q Egoioa mt6 ozlc6@gq ar8zrf eopoozr er1g,6 6)
oco8co 94 oec@co Sg g@c6ocorri qQoOrrf qnlOc 606. zlOq CI@coeiOa OSecoO

qqcg oo8cs gz2 ooc@cs 6L.760,127,701 EgOozs: ozrc689 6ooc eo@cogJ8rl OSeocj

ecirc.3 d@ g@c<Gocoaf gtco<rrrrco E ocoEce ga2 oec@co goo<6zlos E 6A6.

(oof) 2019 oqeoloag 31 Qzro pg> gzocca?r q€o odeg 88c,:ol ac 6,esa6<r,og g8olco,

szol468@ toc Oc58zo niecs OOoczo@ 8@oOenl 6(.9,283,037,804,67.742,023,141 ac

6L.527,623,3402oJ Qoq gOcz:: zorcScocgco, 66 zo6@crrJa)cooec 4 az:o oocgloeoooe @o

qcocd oocEoog8 9e> gzocoaarcerf E Og OOanczsr@Og dzora2O 8@oo@rrJ

61.9,279,686,960, q.141,872,240 zoJ ?tr q.527,610,766b1 Ozr AtEztJ 8€oo€rrj
67.3,3 0 5,844, 67. 15 0, 90 1 zoJ at 67.72,574 zo oOzr ee ?61 E co.

2019 odecooi q.47,r80,28061 g @coco6o eE 8a qc6or ddocQzi: ocdoaJ

67-7,978,511 ni 9 q9so>/ qlgdi@ go> eoqtoc eoE?rcai qqcg qp@1Ezrf arc oula2

Eo<6zlcoo gQ8oai zord oacdQ6. aoq, eo@cogC8a o5eaio r2g o:lc@ogl dzeztJ zDd?tr

eE 68 qc@o dedocqn Og OOzlczor@ q.I1,756,219 zorO qqr€ q€O1daf eoto 6lqul
?D@d zocOq co:r Eaiord ftA€d @8oocp Eco<6rlcoO gQBerJ zod oz::c6@6.

(:i:c) eo9cogCEa Oeso5 oe@ccoog pg d"o@ OzlJzor9 O8anczorg 61.2,509,695,611 g qzrd gg
ef"o@ 0o69 oozlrzor@ 6L.2,298,345,024 Eco. d q€o, eogccoo@ eJ.or@ oaJzog

E€oc2tr6 gcaadn @OOgzo ozstceOdrrr OO 68nle<6co ozoo5. eo@co@ E8zrf ozarcg@

zorS@crrJoo:cgcoO ddocqzrr o,ztcco, grsdr@ obi3s) eotlr qo?trz6)al Ogrrlco zoe, ao16

OaJzor@ Q1ecoO nOc ft.@@cozl 600zor fu"ze g8dcOzsl 9.2513 O1"zqoO6f gOoocoa 6A€6

qzld <5cooldcezdooai erFco Se etr Qzrr eoqozrl oOmJera} qlocoO arlFo@rf g.2sl3

O1.26;oO6J d1.@@cea 75n' ezr-l olzrf e98coc O1.zo;oOrf d1.@@cozl 3002o ozoOzoc@ar 6co

oa:gzo@ QOc oco:l 606. d qeo ee@coo@ e5.org OnJzo@ Oe qrqg?tJ o.zrrcD €o?n

(r)
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(E)

GcoolE.f'zsi ozorOzoc@mo qoaa> er6Q ddzorrcl?rco 6)d @LEg,o o@@ q1e arl$o@rf

eogat o2frro.6 EO 6esc esgcco@ zocdzor gcaJOzrr qoca)5zrr 8€Aq colOgOzoO gp<rQ qd
OO 68zo'lectco Eco.

.zrr) es9c(J)o@E 9e> gzorroazloco8 eooaral q.zo: 15.1.4 oOoal geoc e)c<dOccocdocorJ

eocooi c6ocoE qcd@alzor osJeco 67.17,921,082,356 nl gos 6,oo6lozlcoo qpo o@

<5co octJeco 6L.I7,920,826,970 pocorrf 6L.255,386 zo: oOoesnl66zofo<rco Ece.

(orr) gOcar zoc5cocgocoE 6,erogfOrlce qpO qcoE@ ocrJeco 6L.204,I72,625 6l g qzrd

67.9,406,733n a6 ocrJeo q 8co. d@ <tcsE@ ocrJeoc^:zrf oesd lal 5aJ qnd osJeco

67.5,048,684 nJ or oesd 5o ort gd <rco8@ ocrJec^: e.7,008,243ni g qad eo@cogc8a

OSeeo qOeoca Oa EOzrJ d@ oaJec 6OgC 6BO0 qccobzrco E8rrf zorOg 6) 66 oarc6@6.

esocco@ eor; eddcod z:r1afor2 6l.209,097,0062si ?nr 6L.205,000,00026.i q1o ogeo aoc
@oe3:s: o1"zo2oo:d 4.139,500,00020'l eoc olzrl eg8csc ol"zs;oorrl d1.100,000,000 zo

q8dcOnl gOc oom 646. rrOq ee@cco9 ee4O q16 q1.oOcg5. eJdcOd zllrrlel4oOzri

g1.oocg5 2,920,652.78n1 qo ogeo aoc eozorc 0(o26)o0zrl d1. 700,000,000 zsl q aoa}

q.occg5 2,920,652.78nf qo zDoc go26x o1.zo2oo6f q. 120,000,000 zo <6conJ Q eor
ocnar 6@6.

gozsr Ee$n 6 a6 q16 oBQ, pg> zlalzrlo gzsrcoemoci, Eai65<6 gcqccog gzocoao,oJ,

EOzo@ oon,aiOog gzorco:moci 6@ gQC aocar gzolcgzmod q(aebJ ggc<6cafgzo:

g8r:9 Ezo:glo g@ gEzrl aaB67 68@0 oarJ eszl>coace 68g0 @o omctnld Eco. o@

or}4oOaf, pg> aafzrlO gzocoemco Eai65.o gcqcco@ gzorca?rco, EOzo:@ oOa:oJEo@

926'rrse2tc0, €oeo pQC gOco gzocca2ico eo1zoe€orn OOmczo@ oalC q8n@coaf Og Oc5orccon

ooc oc5zlc o?rczo€, oomczo@ ooc opoqp eego:rfoocezrJ 68co@ co1g8@nl 68ga
qoca)5 qi8 OO dcrJOco 6890 ozlcarld Ece.
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1.3 pgr gzocozrr SSaq zogooc?sdae.oi olo ure?r6 zoda ocuoocoafod 0o6@

o99 pg> gzocg)?t) @ e.^r r8gozod<e 9@6090 qezb?eo 8@oog 6gg arc eococd<6

ogeo 9Q6o?tJ 689 eszr O"Oc otoJ OldQ ouJ4oOzrf q168co ar16 g@c<6cadgzo: a:cOq>

gzorcocorfoors"J oncdo 9e> gzoro:zr, 8@oco6 68@0 a16op B.6es qoca> ozr

qal>rrfard ocgarcorf E6qos 66@ zs:ggarczsrd.oooi 0cr6@ oO.

pg> gzorcoam 8@ocog 66ooQ, eooco@ qodco ooaJocooa c^:co@ oldcoco E6aa
669 zog9arczodgooi OcodgnJ oar qod, zsrg,gmczsrcBaJOce esgccD@ qlod 66O0
qE?tai zodzrJozrf o@ ooC oOzlof Ezsrgfercoml oarc@16 8OQ o@orogg zrrO(6fE€>O

boge zs:dzrforrj a@ arld gocdo ololalo@ oqrl@ @z:: 6g@ n1F@ oc oegcoog

qOdO o1O1rl@O qqcg zo:dig qocOd<6ce 68Oq zog@oczoddocj Ocod96.

es@coo@ p6> Oc5nta66 @cocO@ce eo@OzrlO 0ro6,@, oce?rco mt6a est5ir,ocozrf E$zrf

qdB sa8.

2018 q.zor 19 qda e1t6lr.,s Esr€6?t or:orf 16 (1) 6,e aaulEco gzsrcdO, es9coo@ Oc58zo:

eeto zoc@rl pg> gzocozl 8@ocog 6890 :o16,0r: oEQ a*odco gcqcco@, Ecsq@, oaJzsr@

toc Oldzo:9 8€Aq 68 oBQ oa:crJorJ toc OcSzlc oOrJOcoolrrl coc geco.

pgr gzocoa Eo,6ao ogOzdOocorrJ Eogzood 0o60

@ e'^r Eo<5m 9@6090 Eeeeo eOnlOp gOo''r Eoo:lco @n oq:l@O esgcoo@

pglco gzoccaar 8@AqO Ocrrgzo:ocrJ OcUarcO 6ebJ 669 @coal 0o169 oO. ozoroaf QOq,

9z::co Ecocozrco e6Eor eqag ozorcooaj Eair:d a6 916' zeidt€ otrJ4oozrl o@@ pg>

gzf:csea oe@ozrIooc^::rJ Eogm @arcozs'l eoEoc oQ?r@nf eslelE@o g@c<Eorf oc 6,8r:

Eco<ra eecnl8 gOc c16gO @c toO omctold Eco.

oOord sszndzo uc dcocgzn qOotac 8€aC OcUacO

2018 q"zo 19 E6o't 6tEn Eo<6o otrrool ea:o 2007 g"n 7 qdzs": eo9co@ errrozrJ otorr

eoqorf qOoa>arcOcord es@OzrfOoc,s:rJ OocrJeo gdelcqm ftz:;grf oO .

2007 q"a 7 q6a: es@co@ ozrozrJ 163 (z) (q1)Oorrfdocg eoro 20i8 g"zo 19 qdz::

eJcdzsr Ear<5rrr omoof 12 (q) OcorrJdoci eoqoai qOca>rrcOrrf gpO 8or<6?1ce €oqalc

EOs?)s Scog or:cdo267aa ortorQ€ 68@ 9c toO gOc co16@O oz5-rcto16 g qr>6, @cocrj

s8zo'Je<SocsrrJ ood coal gczo:cdcoO 68 pg> Oc5zlc eo@co@ oOaJOcoozl ococas q16

OO daJOco 6890 @c roO omctold Eco.

t,4

2
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o@9 ocSzs:coo @zlco Ec.rcoa:ce eoE?rc e:Qzrg oa5qocg qnloc q16 n,6t€ o@zrf oar

oeo19 a76, ea@cc;.@ geo gzoccezr), 2007 q"a 07 q6a es@csrg e:loal 151

OozrfdocsE qOcra>zlcOcozrlO qpzs;g OO,

2018 q.zor 19 q6u:' dcdzo Eo<r:rr orrlozrJ 6 (1) (qr) (iii) oorzrldood eoqaraf

gOoa>r:cOco qpO eo@co.@ 9e, gzoccan gAbi OSeeco es@er qBdlo OO.

qpco9oos zordm gq $coo@c5co eso goc orfanc gq eeczsiS @n oc g@c<6crj@zo

zordlq[ogo E@c 68@ b)€, orJ]zr esqoz:'f gzonca 66@0 zld@ d8onl @cosJ goccz:rcoo

gnl o:lc8co.

2018 q"zor 19 q6a eit6,r,., Eco<Gar oorooJ 12 (Et) oorrJdooi esqoaf gooa>ncoce qpo
es@ccoo@ err6]zsl @cdOgoo$ cs9 esc@cSzoocsm;O eo@co9 es@OrrfOO co@ cSEp@nI

ee@OrrfOocord eoag{O oarC qtrlr:czofic,t6,ri eec@czl> O>coc8zsr oraJzsJOocozd A1<n16O

eo@O:rJCc,:aJ q16 OO.

2018 q"zn'r 19 qdzrl eJcdzor Eco<62:r szrroa} 12 (6) ooafdoci eoqord qooa>ncoco qpo
ooor eoqtoaf 66nJe<g and coo gqcg @Fzl EErc,a,Q oali es@coo@ ercgzsr gcdcgco

EBal 6aal zo':6:l gq oOaal oocg oarC 8ocrjee SOczlOgO q€ee o?rro?r oe€s

$ac a6 ft6 OO.

6666/Bacarc,co ooc$O Sdndo

q"a 86ff,112

q6at 2003 gA 02 Q-i6
dcd> O>cercd OgoglOco

(i) 6.5.1 ootrJ8co E€O O5eec^r gOeozrl E Q- 60zs} q1r;gb ge> gzorse?t)

€ear ozn:Q@era} Oc58zo OcSzlcO Eo<5zo:c8ed oOn

gQ8a:nf zo€ ge }ArJ 2019 O6eooi Qg> gzocaam

gQ8esai zord 6@ocd 2022 gA 29 Oa Qrlco.d qAO Qrr,

850 26I g@cq I 606.

zr:c6c.:eocOm Oc5acl gctE OcSnc 8@ocog at6

gQ8esatzorg gA zr96J 2019 a5eaa oOpqoOzrI doed

OcSr:c aQ8oai zod omcdQ6.

(ii)4.2.6 aicr,ri&o

gga t2 lt7



(iii) 5.1 .2 ac,rlEr.l

Ec) 2014 ooOdoc8 17 Q-rd
gozor 0Il20I4 q6a 6tei>

pqglOgoefAco

(i) 5(2) arr,oJEio 8@ocog zordzr gq @cerzocS eoleladgo qafzr6cozr Eco

ga2 Oc58zo gcoOlco oglOzr.rooS pg> nalO gn)rctxn ?Dr

pqgf gocar gzb)rs?c^3 roc O5eco eeEtoc 6co qog ooOo@

eolgled@mf 8@ocog zod orlc@1E qa6 eg oOpOO 2019

A5eaa oOpoOzrl 2019 oqeol@a5 31 Qm Oa EO qcog

ooQ <6ce Oajnd ftAebJ qczoadcozsi Eco6mcoO gQBoaI

zord 6@6

2018 q.zor 19 qdrrl eSc$n Eo<5n oarozrJ 12 (d OorrJdood eoqtoaf qoo>zlcOco qpo
es@ccoo@ 06)o16), zo5zr:o> essr zo:c5coc^:rfo qAee oarcoa ogeo zsropqa2 zod q16 oo.

2018 q"zor 19 q6r: eit6'n Eogzl eraorl 12 (6e) oozrfdooi eoqar:rf qooa>ncoco gpo
oaror eoqoal ESnlecf arld es@coro@ eogonJ eozorgdlO@ ogeo, zoroscenJeg oeeo eorr)

dgqcE ogeo zorcgE@co:rf ec Eqcg aa6a oeo q€ggo geogecqmco zord e)c8zrc z6'rd

oarc@16 OO.

OOgfct@ 68 eolng9 zo:5@czrfzsr cacgcO eddc8n 6B@ :oeqiot 6y.9,718,217,432 (g.odJ

63,935,64I) zo ozoczrfpcal o5zrczor@zs:O 2016 OUeo.*$ Eo{o: ozocafgczrf es@co@zeJ

ee@or r8Eg@oz:r8 60€ qnd dco 2019 OeeoSQ qoeozrl 6890 6c^:@zr Ero. 2019

oQeolgOd 31 QarO 6L.17,67I,726,295 ni Olco zod O>oadce $cocaJ@zs: zod@zrf e1Oa26.

006lo@ AB zr:5@cafnroacgcO 9Q68og ozsrczrfgcrl bOge 6e5oc9 geo@ecqm

@c6ooJoo{caocozrf A1cl76O Eo{Eco gQ68O es@cco@zsrO eOr Q 646. o@@ O>coadco

eog ozrc@ld O>coadconl (Unsolicited Project ) .eru @cocnf9zo E q,6 qzld ffO qqcg

geo9ocqro @cSocoJoo{cn q6o5zo 23 E 3 arorlEr.l coOonJ qnlOc q1a}oal SocrJes

,R $ffi#ffi*ffi
O>cor8zo eoleled@O ftA€bJ E* So2 eooEOca Oparco arc

zoc6ceco oecO:rr q5o:zor co2r zodr€ 20l8,ac 2019

oOpoOaf 8@ocog a,6m eq O>coc8zo eolglaJo@E

fteezif zo'd ozlc6@6.

(r)
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?Dczo'les62s.r qc€6codsJ gztJ ozorcrrfgcala'61oa! oeocoscob) o?icto16 o>coad oeo
o9€52ol o@ooi Unsolicited o>coad ogeo @cocoi@zo: zorg ?D(E AO8. ttg6J oe>0143

zol59c::"Jr:@cgcOnl gq68@ eiczl>rrfnd @g zo:1qQ9 O6?rJ ozocafgcoJzo:QOzq o€orc,o)

o16o@ oldcocozo'l q16 ftEzri gQdsg 8Bo1co eeqoc rB8g@oa 67 "9,718,217,432
(g,odc 63,935,64r) zo gqe goccoldoo 60€ qo@ g"go oo 8@cozr o:lco16o

6ae.

(qt) 2017 AUeaor"S qcd@to zsrg Qor: 68 zod@crrJoroacgcoO zo:c5cocg oocCzllr8glg gQ68@

coooal Q geo@ocqo zo,ose o6nfec 68@ eoqoc ooO@ ogo qqcg ogoS onl, 9"8oa-.1d1

EBrrJ estodzo zodm eQ ztr€ O1C at$zoc eseo ozoczrfpaf rBEgO qcQ EaJard q14€6f

geo@ercqn @Sococp gCec 80 rrrpal Eo<5zlO 9Q6ori orrlc689 @zrr eogcogC$a

oSeco z:2g ocoor d@g 6L.r0,222,824 a oi'Eg o8nJec dgoo omco16 Eco.

(qr) oogfo@ aro 68 zsr6@czrfz::cacgc o>coadc,so qqr€o esgsiz:: 86o1co g godc

63,935,6472s1 oOpoozrf gradao@a'i4 8@ocog 68oOQ 6,oo{oaarco oOgoorrl gqgl

gdercqzr:co zod omc6@6. eogcogCEnr oseoodQ O>coadce eoqarc d1.3,231,7I5 zoJ

ozorcafgnlzo'rd1o ocooc 6A€ gnd gaf 4.1,000,000 6,oo{caarco oopooal es@cogo

o6oc 646. do 6,oo{caa ee@csrg ozlJdcold@o qQr€ @Soocpo Eo<6rrrcoo

gQ8ernlzod omcdQ6.

( +z) qocoztztco EBzd 8€ocog zo:d q1d gccrlOm gcoOlco oglOarood ftegoJ gccrJOa OrJzor@

gardlalCcozlco , OltQgg 689 arc gccrlOan OaJzo:@ @gQ o1E@ qa:Bzrf qCrro@af4

8BO1ce d1.@@cozl 1O Oi6 pd dzsra2O Q. @@cem 550.122o.1 O8arc 6c^:q@ es@OrJOocorf

@coczotcB eolgiedo9E eerersg eozoai zord omcdQ6.

03. eOad Borrnr 68du.rr

( +) qo@oOg 68 qc@n: Eedescqar zor6@czlfrl cacgcoOE Eg@ QcrdadooJ@dco arc @O>9

oOCglO<^:zs:cOocorsJ gzrJ a:1o''r6co ( MV panel) gc@nO :oOronl oqJoc^:zs'i orJ4oOrrf

eStEr.r Eg€ ae e{Odce oc olOd esgOrrJOarcOce Eeszrf8 E 646. eogco@ E8zrf o@@

gQ68O OeO qqc€ ozorcalgcaJzordl argco 0o6g zo)eco ?nx oOzllr2 bOgQ

es@OzrfOocerri EEgg oat E omadF@ orJqoOrrf o@co codc aoJaJOcoO eaJ68@ g@cq E

646. dArEttl qo@r5 Eg@agco Erco?r?rco eo4 Eg@Ag 6,afocqzs: ,eafg (Generators)
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ge8?r^l gOco16@ oerlqoOrf eo@cogC8zl OSeeoc.i qOeocz:: @ceo 3 eoqoc @eozo:O Q.

I,884,537 OlcBzrf, 67.5,653,612 a g@a6 S6Oiconl q189O Sg E d@,&.

(qt) qo@oog 68 zor5@czrfzrroargcoD a:O cozrlgcocdooi ddocqmco eoqoc ocEoc ozog'dzt

oocSogfdlo q6-g 0o dco SBsg 68ogQ odzs:o 6t. 74,206 nJ oomc 68 €o5 l0g0

nJ ar@<5 goaj zordar qzld, oocSogfdlo q@cs Eg eoezoc oear eq dcelQco g 20ls
omJonco6 ?oc o?roorgoS coa'"r @ta2 a2g qoaddc l8 zorQ q6,o E 606.d qpo @cee

@E2il25'r Q d.. r,335,708 oozrrc eOY 1.9440 nl oOcgoSfQO zrlOa g6g9 6gooQ
gozrrcoa'f E qrd OOaJ dc^l OcSSzorO Eoacg ocQOzsl O:rr qz:td S@ qeocgczl> q@coE@ gO€l

68O0 qoca)5 @cocgcSo ocom omc8Q6.

Ei) 2017 oSeooi Q zolSoczrlar(orec a8zodo o>coadco cooorJ qo@oog 6B
zo:5@c6'fng:cgcoO rrrO cozrlgcocdce eeSdSo9rrf og gQSoodQ tocEzlc 6890 gac Q q16

q@od ozo:cOe'i OSgr 66@6rri oarcdO Ecog gO> coOOcoO ococOcoesc 60€ qord d@

ga;o 2019 Oeod qOe,:af Orl EOnJ gafoorrf$ oglOarcozoro ftAebJ 68O0 o.coJ oOmoj

689 oglO?tJcoo 66@zsl oorC Sgzo:d ozrc6@6.

(ft) oocog,czrfil6LA 86 zo59c:rJacJecgcO 8E0 qnlzo:d 12zor 9OO ?Do d@ Qad$nlzood eg
Q aronJ qnfzs:d 37zo gOOml ogee gCO 2nl es@csr@ eoz:;O o06. ?rgbf 2019 aIeaa

qOeoal Oar OOoJ o@9 gO@ oqzorO qqcg Odg orc 8@dlozil eo9cco@ eoa2O ozrcdQcr

qnd qnlzod 37 gcoo gqzod q16 $cc es@cd cacgco, 6,5:r9 ac iooiotg, qlaro ocEzlc

@6)c2od?tr da rnc d@ gCo@E qr,ln'6 l5 zoO q8zo: q@ g@c<6comi 689 OocOzorO ooC

9Q68ozsro grcEarc omczod goc8arc oO8zn ao 2019 oqeo19O5 31 Qro 8g ^g otosdzor

o6:sJecrooiQ g:r, cOd<Eco Eco.

( e) O6ai o8oeoCe3a-rc.:O epgg 6B80 dedercqnco 68o esoaalOocorrJ oalar 66nlee€6co?t}

ozoo5.

(i) 2017 OSeooi g@ 9eo 8O qo@oOg lrlO 6883 roalgtioc6 dedercqar bOSe qcd@eo

zod 6Qg qz::d dQzrr 8O 2018 eJmOcB @eo 18 Qar qzolOc dedocQo 6883 qn8ai
86O1co ft.@@cezr 475.2 nI Q o@Qzoi oocnf 720 a ggc<5conl oqJeo eo8rr OOrJ dOc

Oded e6ooCeJacoo Aggg OO es@coo@ descococ6 Ot5nn @6ttJ zlarQdl zord 6Q6
qr.l6 oe$dcoq6co ozrfozrJdlO e(e ooOq> e5ocjeg qr6zr2trco @atbJ zo€

er6nleocOO gpO o99 6680 O9rdc zo:m eo4zrfocrJ qoard eoqtoc qpgO>cenl Osaoco?tJ
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NAOSL

ococqc o16@ ggg aOO 2018 qooJ a?o2 07 Qm d@ Erozr?trco E8rrl qrrJoc 6@6.

ercBotoCdzocozrJocozrJ o1@6@ gi6o9zsf $g ?rrozr oOOcO oOzr oozrJot ronJ 6680

obcooco2rf dogJqg 666,075 zo g@c<6conl 2019 oqeoi@a6 31 Qm Om EOzrI

coOOroO olOd qod d orJ4oOaf @OCcoO qo?rzo'JzrJ ogoorg9 zorOg4OgO OcOc 8g

E qrd qod o@@ ocQO eo@O:rlOocoaf Earco o6nJec6c.:zoJ oOnJOc oarc6@6.

(ii) geo@ecqo @c5ooCero{o 6.groocg 1.2.I (q.) e?r Ocoafd q€O e"g eoqalc

r.l6ar,n6n|oco E@c 68o q16 66ozoJ ooC doai oleoE@nf 8g onczog ge qbrd

6,azsfgOni qnlOm @ar1@ escSclaOco?rJO eog eeE?rc eseo?rcE8@O zoOge colg8co 96)co,

cozrJrlo eio?rr8o @6aj o8otoCdmo:o €trgE 6880 dogCcrJd@ 666,075 2ol ozl)ccDco

esaJaJO qtnt6 eoqoc qpgO>al Oo:ocoztJ qoe8 66@0 e.E zo:rQEoOQ g.p eeqarc

qcdcOzlco zo:g @8oc9 "eo@g5<6 6880 oztcocs@ dzoOd @gQ ozl 948" com

ozoczsfo{8 oaB2tl g.g zs:d1ozsf 9Q6oa} E@ E@c zod 6Qqi Oo 68zs}eo<5co Q qzrd

d@ 6esc 9al6r obr)co a 2019 oQeo19O5 31 Qm om SoaJ oOoc 49 e1o4,6.

(r)

at2015 qoglel 08 Q-.6 q9czrr> 9<dOg E6acs e6Q ee@co@ arc src€dOcocdc.: eo@er

g6oco EOp9zoo dg6co gA go6f 2022 @r./'o:aC@O5 27 Qa qzo'loc@ ooo$ <E8ggzoro

Og@ oarcdQ6.

qo$oOg zo6@caJrrclcgcoD 2014 Ac59zo oztrcr es@nfocodq 6L.6,041,166 OOrlczo9

?rgbJ $9 oorro q8zsr@ gOnidSOO oslJ oOrrJod8689o zo:Oge oaczod Eoco Qar

92019 oQeol@O5 18 Qzr O:rr EOoJ qO€ gtu ogeo ddecqm q"cacoO qcoaf oOOcO r:g

oOc 6Q6.

(:o) pg> gzoco:zl eoOozrJ gpO ogEco OSeooi gcg co<5zo ecttco d1.80,551 ,I42nl QOq

Ea*EOa qcqcco@ coOozrJ Og ectoc^3 Q.69,273,982a1 oees qzslOc q16 qrl6

6L.17,277,160 oOmeezrl Qocozrf es"eszrJEmcrJ@zo oon6n267 6o(dq omcOzl AO

68mlegc^: Eco. o@@ oOzr:es 8@aqo og8co Odeeooi OcSorcoOE q ooalOc 60*t q

6o(dq 68@ zod oarcd@6.

es@coo@ Sg> zlnlolO gzsrcoaroc,i esosrm q"zo 3 qpo di.48,000,958 zor OOzs:czo@o

zf)Cag oqelg @zl @gQoraf o@CoSddOg zoCag zoceco qoeoczl E@ 6eoc 2019

(:)

())
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

As at As at

 31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

ASSETS Note Rs. Rs.

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6,065,801,089         6,451,500,834        

Capital Work-In-Progress 4 12,588,158,537       11,894,455,027      

Financial Instrument - Amortised cost 5 787,696,142            769,263,440           

Long-term Advances 6 139,152,682            356,287,245           

Total Non-Current Assets 19,580,808,449       19,471,506,547      

Current Assets

Inventories 7 1,093,130,830         1,505,734,350        

Trade and Other Receivables 8 1,191,235,517         1,288,433,432        

Income Tax Receivable 9 212,514,712            172,903,239           

Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 12,814,551              19,269,258             

Total Current Assets 2,509,695,611         2,986,340,280        

Total Assets 22,090,504,060       22,457,846,827      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Stated Capital and Reserves

Stated Capital 11 319,454,060            319,454,060           

Capital Reserve 12 25,000,000              25,000,000             

Revaluation Reserve 336,454,463            336,454,463           

Sinking Fund 13 1,689,978                1,689,978               

Retained Earnings (145,248,000)          785,181,360           

Shareholders' Fund 537,350,500            1,467,779,860        

 
Non-Current Liabilities  

Deferred Tax Liability 14 -                          -                          

Non-interest Bearing Borrowings 15 2,108,063                2,108,063               

Interest Bearing Borrowings - Long-Term 15 18,572,055,438       18,202,111,219

Retirement Benefit Obligations - Gratuity -5.2 651,565,041            527,308,101           

Deferred Income - Government Grant 17 29,079,994              41,712,392             

Total Non-Current Liabilities 19,254,808,536       18,773,239,775      

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 18 762,087,282            841,105,671           

Interest Bearing Borrowings - Short Term 15 135,419,841            123,568,773           

Bank Overdrafts 19 1,400,837,901         1,252,152,747        

Total Current Liabilities 2,298,345,024         2,216,827,191        

Total Equity and Liabilities 22,090,504,060       22,457,846,827      

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 35 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

I certify that these Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

………………………………

Mr. M. G. P. Premathilaka

Manager- Finance 

The Board of Directors  is  responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.

Approved and Signed for and on behalf of the Board on ………………………

………………………………  ………………………………

Mr. Renuka Perera ………………………………

Chairman Director
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
ST

 DECEMBER, 2019

31
st
 December, 31

st
 December,

2019 2018

Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue 20 10,313,820,273     11,612,344,021   

Cost of Sales (9,917,539,530)      (11,385,405,568) 

Gross Profit 396,280,743          226,938,453        

Other Operating Income 21 29,709,723            366,304,291        

425,990,466          593,242,745        

Administrative Expenses (688,427,005)         (640,583,272)      

Distribution Expenses (399,206,715)         (475,008,669)      

Other Expenses (55,158,791)           (18,071,620)         

Profit/ (Loss) from Operations (716,802,045)         (540,420,816)      

Finance Income 22 49,926,845            46,135,691          

Finance Expenses 23 (195,839,348)         (189,164,365)      

Net Loss Before Taxation (862,714,548)         (683,449,491)      

Income Tax Expenses 24 -                         201,663,631        

Net Loss for the Year after Taxation (862,714,548)         (481,785,860)      

Other Comprehensive Income  

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remessurement of Defined Benefit Plan, Net of Taxes (67,714,812)           69,273,982          

Total Other Comprehensive Income Net of Tax (67,714,812)           69,273,982          

Total Comprehensive Income (930,429,360)         (412,511,878)      

Basic Earning/(Loss) Per Share 25 (27.01)                    (15.08)                  

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 35 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

 For the Year 

Ended 

2

 For the Year 

Ended 



Stated Capital Revaluation Sinking Retained

Capital Reserve Reserve Fund Earnings Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 31st December 2017 319,454,060     25,000,000       336,454,463     1,689,978         1,197,693,238  1,880,291,738  

Net Profit for the Year -                   -                   -                   -                   (481,785,860)    (481,785,860)    

Other Comprehensive Income -                   -                   -                   -                   69,273,982       69,273,982       

 

Balance as at 31st December 2018 319,454,060     25,000,000       336,454,463     1,689,978         785,181,360     1,467,779,860  

Net Profit for the Year -                   -                   -                   -                   (930,429,360)    (930,429,360)    

Other Comprehensive Income -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Balance as at 31st December 2019 319,454,060     25,000,000       336,454,463     1,689,978         (145,248,000)    537,350,500     

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 35 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

3



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

As at As at

31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Cash Flow from Operating Activities Rs. Rs.

Net Loss Before Taxation (862,714,548)     (683,449,491)     

Adjustments for ;

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 527,623,340       542,428,556      

Income from Investment (49,926,845)       (46,135,691)       

Interest Expense 190,620,525       182,496,282      

Lease Interest 5,225,511           6,730,089          

Recognized Income on Deferred Grants (12,632,398)       (19,757,115)       

Exchange Gain 2,566,588           (88,548,642)       

Provision for Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity 98,254,612         87,046,552        

Disposal Gain (566,035)            (12,600,907)       

ESC Weitten off 15,364,873         12,434,370        

Capital work-in progress written off 741,099              -                     

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (85,443,279)       (19,355,997)       

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 412,603,520       238,629,532      

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 95,115,502         198,690,823      

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (73,730,889)       (36,230,360)       

Cash Generated from Operations 348,544,854       381,733,998      

Interest Paid (190,620,525)     (182,496,282)     

Tax Paid -  ESC and Income Tax (52,893,933)       (60,035,055)       

Payment of Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity (41,712,485)       (38,582,223)       

Net Cash From/ (Used In) Operating Activities 63,317,912         100,620,438      

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (87,503,835)       (102,363,192)     

Investments in Property, Plant and Equipment in the Course of Construction (516,304,352)     (1,695,632,797)  

Proceeds from disposal of Assets 665,582              12,670,787        

Interest Received 49,926,845         46,135,691        

New/ (Withdrawal) Short-Term and Long-Term Investment (Net) (20,999,289)       (72,298,872)       

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (574,215,049)     (1,811,488,384)  

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Government Grant Received -                     4,573,003          

Lease Rental Paid (30,448,356)       (28,501,283)       

During the Year Loan Granted 509,141,829       2,239,963,647    

Loans and  Borrowings Repayments (122,936,197)     (101,859,626)     

Adjustment of exchange impact in long term advances -                     (543,766,109)     

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities 355,757,276       1,570,409,632    

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (155,139,861)     (140,458,314)     

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (Note A) (1,232,883,488)  (1,092,425,174)  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Note B) (1,388,023,350)  (1,232,883,488)  
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - (Contd..)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

As at As at

31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

At the Beginning of the Year

Balances at Banks 13,963,657         20,487,923        

Petty Cash in Hand 5,305,601           4,260,251          

19,269,258         24,748,174        

Bank Overdrafts (1,252,152,747)  (1,117,173,348)  

(1,232,883,489)  (1,092,425,174)  

At the End of the Year

Balances at Banks 7,989,149           13,963,657        

Petty Cash in Hand 4,825,402           5,305,601          

12,814,551         19,269,258        

Bank Overdrafts (1,400,837,901)  (1,252,152,747)  

(1,388,023,350)  (1,232,883,488)  

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 35 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED     

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 
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1.1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

1.1.1 Legal and Domiciled Form 

Milco (Private) Limited (The Company) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled 

in Sri Lanka. 

  

The company was incorporated on 09th May, 1996 under the name ‘Kiriya Milk Industries of Lanka 

(Private) Limited’. The name of the company was changed as ‘Milco (Private) Limited’ with effect 

from 23rd July 2001. As per the agreement  entered  into between the Government of Sri Lanka 

(GOSL) and the National Dairy Development Board of India (NDDB), all property, plant and 

equipment (other than land) owned and used by  Milk  Industries  of  Lanka  Company  Limited   as  

at 03rd February,1998 and leasehold rights of the land and buildings used by Milk  Industries  of  

Lanka (Private) Company  Limited  as at  the same date were  transferred to the Company with 

effect from 04th February, 1998. The value of Net Assets so transferred was Rs.306,500,020/-. 

Further, as per the letter dated 08th August, 2000 from Public Enterprises Reform Commission of Sri 

Lanka, annual lease rentals of leasehold land and buildings amounting to Rs. 20,427,900/- was 

waived off as per a cabinet decision.    

 

The registered office of the company is located at No. 45, Nawala Road, Colombo 05 and the 

principal place of business is also at the same place. Major factories of the company are situated at 

Narahenpita, Ambewela, Digana, Polonnaruwa and construction of Badalbama factory was in 

progress as of 31st December 2019. 

 

1.1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations  

During the year, the principal activities of the company were collecting, processing, packing, 

distributing and dealing in milk related products. 

 

1.1.3 Date of Authorization to Issue  

The financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2019 were authorized for issue in 

accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 29.06.2022. 

  

1.1.4 Responsibility for Financial Statements 

The board of directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial 

statements  

 

1.2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

1.2.1 General Accounting Policies  

 

1.2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 

(SLFRS / LKAS) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka  

 

1.2.1.2 Basis of Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention basis with the 

exception of certain assets and liabilities at fair value or any other basis, as it may require or 

prescribe by specific SLFRS / LKAS.  
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1.2.1.3 Functional and Presentation Currency 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of primary economic 

environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are 

presented in Sri Lanka Rupees, which is the company’s functional and presentation currency.  

 

1.2.1.4 Statement of Compliance  
The statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 

flows, together with accounting policies and notes (“financial statements”) of the company as at 31st 

December, 2019 are prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS and 

SLFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. 

 

 

1.2.1.5 Going Concern  

The Directors of the company have made an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern and are satisfied that the company has the resources to continue in business for a 

foreseeable future. Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that 

may cast significant doubt upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, 

the financial statements are continued to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

 

1.2.1.6 Comparative Information   

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are consistent with 

those of the previous year. The previous year’s figures and phrases have been re-arranged wherever 

necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation/classification. 

 

1.2.1.7 Foreign Currency Transaction 

All foreign exchange transactions are converted to Sri Lanka Rupees, which is the reporting 

currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time the transactions were effected.  

 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Sri Lanka Rupee 

equivalents using year end spot foreign exchange rates, the resulting gains or losses are accounted in 

the statement of comprehensive income.   

 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rates that existed when the 

values were determined. The resulting gain or loss is accounted in the statement of comprehensive 

income.  

 

1.2.1.8 Materiality and Aggregation 

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of 

dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.  

 

1.2.1.9 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

 

a) Judgements 

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the management has made the judgements, apart 

from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized 

in the financial statements.  
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b) Estimates and Assumptions   

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and 

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at reporting date. 

 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

date of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, have been considered. 

 

1.3 Assets and Bases of their Valuation  

 

1.3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

a) Measurement 

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Where items of 

property, plant and equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class of such assets is 

revalued. 

 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the cost of day to day servicing, less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of 

replacing part of the property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition 

criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be 

replaced at intervals, the company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful 

lives and depreciates them accordingly. 

 

When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the 

property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other 

repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

 

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-

recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year 

the asset is de-recognized. 

 

b) Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 

The company reviews the assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation at each 

reporting date; judgement made by the management based on the professional experts is exercised 

in the estimation of these values, rates and methods. 

 

c) Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 

of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the 

expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.  

 

Assets held under finance lease are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the useful lives 

of equivalent owned assets.   
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The economic useful lives are as follows: 

 

Buildings  20 to 25 years 

Plant and Machinery  04 to 30 years 

Furniture and Fittings   03 to 05 years 

Laboratory Equipment  03 to 05 years 

Motor Vehicles  08 to 15 years 

Tools and Equipment  03 to 10 years 

Office Equipment   2.5 to 05 years 

Bottles and Crates  04 years 

Computers  02 to 04 years 

Bottle Coolers   2.5 to 05 years 

Software  03 years 

Milk Cans  05 years 

 

Depreciation of assets begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that 

the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognized. 

 

d) Restoration Costs   

Expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of property, plant and equipment in order to 

restore or maintain the future economic benefits expected from originally assessed standard of 

performance is recognized as an expense when incurred.  

 

e) Borrowing Costs   

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 

capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are recognised as 

expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

f) De- Recognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on                     

de-recognition of the asset is calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 

the carrying amount and is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.  

 

1.3.2 Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 

accumulated impairment losses.  

 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 

amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is 

reviewed at least at each financial year-end. 

 

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 

benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as 

appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on 

intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 

Comprehensive Income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible 

asset. 
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1.3.3 Leases 

 

a) Finance Leases – Where the Company is the Lessee   
Leases which assume that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership 

are classified as finance leases. Assets acquired by way of a finance lease are measured at an amount 

equal to the lower of their fair value or the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception 

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.   

 

The corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor is shown as a liability. The finance charges 

allocated to future periods are separately disclosed in the notes.  

 

The interest element of the rental obligation applicable to each financial year is charged to the 

statement of comprehensive income over the period of the lease so as to produce a constant periodic 

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.  

  

The cost of improvements to, or on leased property is capitalized, and depreciated over the unexpired 

period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.  

 

Any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount of assets in respect of a sale and leaseback 

transaction that results in a finance lease, is deferred and amortized over the lease term. 

 

b) Operating Leases 

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of an asset under the 

leased term, are classified as operating leases. 

 

Lease payments (excluding cost of service such as insurance and maintenance) paid under operating 

leases are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the 

lease on a straight line basis.   

 

1.3.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

The company assesses at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is an indication that an asset 

may be impaired. If such indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required 

the company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is 

the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and 

determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 

independent of those from other assets or a group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset 

exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 

recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time 

value of money and the risk specific to the asset.  
 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income 

in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 
 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to verify as to whether 

there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have 

decreased. If such indication exists, the company makes an estimate of the recoverable amount.  
 

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates 

used to determine the assets’ recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If 

that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increased 

amount cannot “exceed” the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation 
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had, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized 

in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

1.3.5 Capital Work-in-Progress  

Capital work-in-progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts at the time of the first 

utilization of the asset.  

 

1.3.6 Financial Assets 

The company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: Financial Assets at fair value 

through profit or loss, Loans and receivables, financial assets available for sale and Held-to-maturity 

financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were 

acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date. 

 

1.3.6.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement 

 The company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial 

assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of assets not at fair value through profit or 

loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 
 

 Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 

regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., 

the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.  
 

The company’s financial assets include cash, investments in fixed deposits and trade and other 

receivables. 

1.3.6.2 Subsequent Measurement 

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows: 

 

(a) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and 

financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 

assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or re-

purchasing in the near term.  

 

(b) Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 

are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 

or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in 

the statement of comprehensive income.  

 

(c) Held-to-Maturity Investments 

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are 

classified as held-to-maturity when the company has the positive intention and ability to hold them 

to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost 

using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by 

taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part 

of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive 

income. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 

income in finance costs.  
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(d) Available-for-Sale Financial Investments 

Available-for-sale financial investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments 

classified as available-for-sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor 

designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are 

intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for 

liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 

 

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair 

value.  

 

Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity (Other comprehensive income) in the 

‘Available for sale reserve’. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss 

previously recognized in equity is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in ‘Other 

operating income’. Where the company holds more than one investment in the same security, they 

are deemed to be disposed of on a first–in first–out basis. Interest earned whilst holding available for 

sale financial investments is reported as interest income using the EIR. Dividends earned whilst 

holding available for sale financial investments are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 

income as ‘Other operating income’ when the right of the payment has been established. The losses 

arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 

income in ‘Impairment losses on financial investments’ and removed from the ‘Available for sale 

reserve’.  

 

(d)  Available-for-Sale Financial Investments  
The company evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to determine whether the ability and 

intention to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the company is unable to trade these 

financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to do so significantly changes in 

the foreseeable future, the company may elect to re-classify these financial assets in rare 

circumstances. Re-classification to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet 

the definition of loans and receivables and the company has the intent and ability to hold these assets 

into a foreseeable future or until maturity. Re-classification to the held-to-maturity category is 

permitted only when the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial assets accordingly. 

 

For a financial asset to be re-classified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous gain or 

loss on that asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining 

life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortized cost and the 

expected cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset 

is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is             re-classified 

to the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

1.3.6.3 De-Recognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 

financial assets) is de-recognized when: 

 

(a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired 
 

(b) The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 

‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  
 

The company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the company has 

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 

transferred control of the asset. 
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When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 

a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks 

and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of it, the asset is recognized to the extent of the 

company’s continuing involvement in it. 
 

In that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company 

has retained. 
 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 

the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 

that the company could be required to repay. 

 

1.3.6.4 Impairment of Financial Assets 

The company assesses at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any objective evidence 

that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of 

financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as 

a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 

‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 

asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may 

include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial 

difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will 

enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganizations where observable data indicates that there is a 

measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 

conditions that correlate with defaults. 

 

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost 

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the company first assesses to determine whether 

objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually 

significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the company 

determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial 

asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit 

risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 

assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not 

included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is 

measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated 

future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The 

present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original 

effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 

impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. 
 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the 

amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income 

continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest 

used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The 

interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of 

future recovery and all collaterals have been realized or has been transferred to the company. If, in a 

subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an 
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event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is 

increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the 

recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 

For available-for-sale financial assets, the company assesses at each reporting date to verify whether 

there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of 

equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or 

prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated 

against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value 

has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - 

measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any 

impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of comprehensive 

income - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the statement of 

comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the 

statement of comprehensive income; increases in their fair value after impairments are recognized 

directly in other comprehensive income. 
 

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the 

same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for 

impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the 

current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the 

statement of comprehensive income. 
 

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, 

using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the 

impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in a subsequent year, 

the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event 

occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, the 

impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

1.3.7 Financial Liabilities 

The company classifies its financial liabilities as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 

loss or other financial liabilities, as appropriate. At the reporting date there were no financial 

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

1.3.7.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. This includes directly attributable 

transaction costs. The company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other 

payables and bank overdrafts. 

 

1.3.7.2 Subsequent Measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows: 

 

(a) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 

and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in 

the near term.  

(b) Other Financial Liabilities 

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 

the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the a statement of 
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comprehensive income when the liabilities are de-recognized as well as through the effective interest 

rate method (EIR) amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortization is included in finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

1.3.7.3 De-Recognition 

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender 

on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 

an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in 

the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

1.3.7.4 Off-setting of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 

financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the 

liabilities simultaneously. 

 

1.3.8 Inventories  

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, after making due allowances 

for obsolete and slow-moving items. Net realizable value is the price at which inventories can be 

sold in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and estimated cost 

necessary to make the sale.       

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and condition is accounted using the 

following cost formula:  

 

Raw Material       -  At cost determined on Weighted Average Basis, 
 

Finished Goods - At the cost of direct materials, direct labour and appropriate proportion of 

fixed production overheads at normal operating capacity, 
 

Work-In-Progress - At the cost of input materials, 
 

Packing Material  - At cost determined on Weighted Average Basis, 
  
Other Stocks  - At cost determined on Weighted Average Basis, 
 

Goods In Transit  - At actual cost.  
 

1.3.9 Trade and Other Receivables  

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost 

using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.  
 

Other receivables are recognized at the amounts they are estimated to realize net of provisions for 

impairment. The amount of the provision is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

However, staff loans have not been measured at amortized cost due to unavoidable reasons of the 

company.  
 

1.3.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held as call deposits with banks, other 

short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months. Bank overdrafts are 

shown within current liabilities in the statement of financial position. 
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1.3.11 Stated Capital 
 

(a) Classification 

Ordinary shares with discretionary dividends are classified as equity when there is no obligation to 

transfer cash or other assets. 
 

(b) Dividends 

Dividends are recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive the dividend is established. In the 

case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is when declared by the directors.  In the case 

of final dividends, this is when approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.  

 

1.3.12  Current and Deferred Income Tax 

 

a) Current Taxes  
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 

expected to be recovered from, or paid to the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue. 

 

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as reported in the 

financial statements and computed in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act No. 

10 of 2006. 

 

b) Deferred Taxation 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the date of the 

financial position between the tax bases of assets and liabilities, and their carrying amounts for 

financial reporting purposes.   

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused 

tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 

deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused losses can 

be utilized.  

  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each date of the statement of financial 

position and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax 

assets are re-assessed at each date of the statement of financial position and are recognized to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be 

recovered.    

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year 

when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position. 

 

Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity. 

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set 

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 

entity and the same taxation authority. 

 

 

 



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED     

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 
 

17 

 

1.3.13 Employee Benefits 

 

(a) Defined Benefit Plans – Gratuity 

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities, in conformity with LKAS 19 / Gratuity Act No.12 

of 1983. The liability is not externally funded. The gratuity liabilities are based on actuarial 

valuation carried out. The actuarial gains and losses are charged or credited to the statement of other 

comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  

 

The retirement benefit obligation of the company is based on the actuarial valuation carried out by 

Messrs. Actuarial & Management Consultants (Pvt) Ltd. The actuarial valuations involve making 

assumptions about discount rates and future salary increases. The complexity of the valuation, the 

underlying assumptions and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation are highly sensitive to 

changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Details of the 

key assumptions used in the estimates contain in note no 16. The main assumptions used relate to 

mortality, disability rates and withdrawal rates. The assumptions regarding the discount rate and 

salary rate are of critical importance in determining the pace of providing for a final salary 

retirement scheme. 

 

(b) Defined Contribution Plans – Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund  

Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund 

Contributions in line with respective statutes and regulations. The company contributes 12% and 3% 

of the gross emoluments of employees to the Employees’ Provident Fund and to the Employees’ 

Trust Fund respectively.  

 

1.3.14 Grants and Subsidies  

Grants and subsidies are credited to the statement of comprehensive income over the period 

necessary to match them with related cost, which are intended to compensate on a systematic basis.  
   
Grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are deferred in the statement of 

financial position and credited to the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the 

related asset.  
 

Grants related to income are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in 

which they are receivable. 

 

1.3.15 Trade and Other Payables 

Trade payables are obligations to pay for services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 

business. These are classified as current liabilities where payment is due within one year or less if 

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. 
 

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost 

using the effective interest method. Short-term payables with no stated interest rate are measured at 

original invoiced amount since the effect of discounting is immaterial. 
 

1.3.16 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 

obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future 

operating losses.  

 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in 

settlement are determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is 
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recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same 

class of obligations may be small.  

 

1.3.17 Commitments 

 All material commitments as at the reporting date have been identified and disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements.  

 

1.3.18 Related Party Transactions 

Disclosure is made in respect of the transaction in which one party has the ability to control or 

exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies/decisions of the other, 

irrespective of whether a price is charged. Relationship between parent and subsidiaries shall be 

disclosed irrespective of whether there have been transactions between those related parties. 

 

1.3.19 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or services is 

transferred to the customer at an amount that reflect consideration to which the Company expects to 

be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

 

(a) Goods transferred at a point of time 

Under SLFRS 15, revenue is recognised upon satisfaction of a performance obligation. The revenue 

recognition occurs at a point of time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer, 

generally, on delivery of the goods. 

 

(b) Service transferred over time 

Under SLFRS 15, the company determines, at the contract inception, whether it satisfies the 

performance obligation over time or at a point of time. For each performance obligation satisfied 

over time, the company recognises the revenue over time by measuring the progress towards the 

complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. 

 

(c) Interest Income 

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.  

  

(d) Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

 

(e) Other Income 

Other income is recognized on accrual basis. 

  

1.3.20 Expenditure 

The expenditures are recognized on an accrual basis. All expenses incurred in the ordinary course of 

business and in maintaining property, plant and equipment in a state of efficiency are charged 

against income in arriving at the profit for the year.  

 

For the purpose of presentation of the statement of comprehensive income information, expense by 

function method is used to classify the expenses. 
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a) Tangible assets

 

Balance Balance Balance Balance

As At Additions As At As At Charge On As At As At As At

01.01.2019 Disposals 31.12.2019 01.01.2019 for the Year Disposals 31.12.2019 01.01.2019 31.12.2019

Description of Assets Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Freehold

Land 3,250,000          -                 -                  -                       3,250,000          -                     -                 -                    3,250,000          3,250,000           

Buildings 507,345,106      2,876,067       -                  -                       510,221,172      129,024,894      42,472,865     171,497,759      378,320,212      338,723,413       

Plant and Machinery 7,375,587,018   46,232,055     -                  11,378,100          7,433,197,173   1,531,318,511   397,436,776   1,928,755,287   5,844,268,507   5,504,441,887    

Furniture and Fittings 45,887,661        4,794,545       -                  -                       50,682,206        37,509,607        3,230,290       40,739,897        8,378,053          9,942,308           

Laboratory Equipment 77,485,874        5,030,394       -                  -                       82,516,268        53,179,696        7,425,785       60,605,481        24,306,178        21,910,788         

Motor Vehicles 97,101,450        -                 (2,250,000)      48,000,958          142,852,408      96,242,880        3,180,658       (2,228,788)       97,194,750        858,570             45,657,658         

Tools and Equipment 322,203,703      11,543,262     -                  -                       333,746,966      244,312,620      26,125,415     270,438,034      77,891,084        63,308,931         

Bottles and Crates 349,496,153      5,814,173       -                  -                       355,310,326      302,855,435      20,568,620     323,424,055      46,640,718        31,886,271         

Computer Equipment 48,134,443        4,369,288       -                  -                       52,503,731        32,267,911        5,931,322       38,199,234        15,866,532        14,304,497         

Bottle Coolers 148,634,639      3,465,905       -                  -                       152,100,544      138,813,799      3,819,502       142,633,301      9,820,840          9,467,243           

Office Equipment 9,964,767          319,339         (86,121)           -                       10,197,986        7,050,391          944,765         (7,786)              7,987,370          2,914,376          2,210,616           

Milk Cans 80,176,804        2,045             -                  -                       80,178,849        58,811,020        6,392,997       65,204,017        21,365,784        14,974,832         

9,065,267,617   84,447,074     (2,336,121)      59,379,058          9,206,757,629   2,631,386,764   517,528,994   (2,236,574)       3,146,679,184   6,433,880,853   6,060,078,444    

b) Intangible Assets

Computer Software 2,837,209          -                 -                  -                       2,837,209          2,632,871          83,333           2,716,204          204,338             121,005              

c) Leasehold Assets

Motor Vehicles 75,245,958        17,294,907     -                  (19,097,898)         73,442,966        57,830,315        10,011,012     67,841,327        17,415,643        5,601,639           

Total 9,143,350,784   101,741,981   (2,336,121)      40,281,160          9,283,037,804   2,691,849,950   527,623,340   (2,236,574)       3,217,236,716   6,451,500,834   6,065,801,089    

Cost/Valuation Depreciation

 Transfers  

Written Down Value
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Balance Incurred  Capitalized/  Balance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As At During the Charged As At

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 01.01.2019 Period During the Period 31.12.2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

4. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Construction of New Milk Factory - Badalgama (Refer Note 15) * 10,957,945,499   713,780,796        -                      11,671,726,295   

Construction of Gatabe Sales Outlet 150,000               -                      -                      150,000               

Installation of Cup & Cone Filler at Digana Milk Factory 15,445,587          -                      -                      15,445,587          

Modernization of Factories- Polonnaruwa,Ambewela and Digana (Refer Note 15) * 790,264,562        -                      -                      790,264,562        

Development Projects at Ambewela Milk Factory 71,342,562          -                      -                      71,342,562          

Construction of Cool Room at Polonnaruwa Milk Factory 11,378,100          -                      (11,378,100)        -                  

Pro- Fit Management Information System Implementation 2,571,770            1,607,760            -                      4,179,530            

Construction of Chilling Centre- Palathoppur 26,190                 714,909               (741,099)             -                  

Lorry Chasis Under Development 45,330,756          -                      (27,616,206)        17,714,550          

Construction of Chilling Centre- Lunugala -                      57,500                 -                      57,500                 

Construction of building at Ambewela Milk Factory -                      7,055,125            -                      7,055,125            

Construction of office building at Digana Milk Factory -                      10,222,824          -                      10,222,824          

11,894,455,027   733,438,915        (39,735,405)        12,588,158,537   

4.1

4.2

4.3 Expenses incured on Construction of Chilling Centre- Palathoppur has been charged to income statement during the year. 

As detailed in note no 15 to these financial statements, modernization of the above factories and construction of New Milk Factory - Badalgama have been financed by 

loans granted by the Treasury of the Government of Sri Lanka. 

Developments carried at Ambewela milk factory including "Power Expansion System, Construction of Water Tank and Refrigaration plant, Construction of Equilization 

tank, Establishment of new generators".
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - AMORTISED COST

5.1 Long-Term Fixed Deposits

Fixed Deposits - BOC - US $ 578,599,135         559,058,332      

Fixed Deposits - PB & PABC 209,097,006         210,205,108      

787,696,142         769,263,440      

6 LONG TERM ADVANCES

Advance to DESMI - Relocate CMF to Badalgama

Balance at the beginning of the year 356,287,245         560,536,942      

Adjustment of exchange impact -                        543,766,109      

Transferred to Capital Work in Progress (217,134,563)        (748,015,807)     

Balance at the end of the year 139,152,682         356,287,245      

7 INVENTORIES

Raw and Packing Materials 7.1 321,342,530         387,696,803      

Work-in-Progress 5,895,808             2,989,381          

Finished Goods 218,770,084         677,601,473      

Consumables 7.2 548,245,734         441,729,431      

Goods in Transit 7.3 10,973,035           7,813,624          

Provision for Inventory 7.4 (12,096,362)          (12,096,362)       

1,093,130,830      1,505,734,350   

7.1 Raw and Packing Materials

Raw Materials - Dairy Production 70,799,062           82,419,493        

Packing Material 230,784,760         274,243,365      

Raw Milk Stock 12,722,205           23,997,441        

Bottle Cooler Stock 3,496,313             3,496,313          

Drugs and Other Stock 3,540,190             3,540,190          

321,342,530         387,696,803      

As detailed in note no 15 to these financial statements, establishment of a diary processing plant at Badalgama

has been financed by a loan granted by the Treasury of the Government of Sri Lanka. On 22/10/2015, Treasury

of Government of Sri Lanka made advance payment of an amount equivalent to EURO 19,180,692 (30% of the

contract value)

21

Investments pledged as collaterals to obtain various financial assistance from the financial institutions are

disclosed in note no. 30 to these financial statements.
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AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

7.2 Consumables

General Stores 53,108,135           50,418,442        

Engineering Stores 443,052,222         339,872,187      

Motor Stores 13,159,699           12,570,054        

Fuel and Lubricant  Stores 29,896,808           29,839,877        

Milk Can Stock 9,028,871             9,028,871          

 548,245,734         441,729,431      

7.3 Goods In Transit

Finished Goods in Transit 5,151,487             4,837,300          

Goods in Transit Lab Equipment 125,798                125,798             

Raw Milk In Transit 4,827,551             2,755,326          

Yogurt Culture 868,200                95,200               

 10,973,035           7,813,624          

7.4 Provision For Inventory

Packing Material (10,163,806)          (10,163,806)       

General Stores (332,731)               (332,731)            

Engineering Stores (1,523,655)            (1,523,655)         

Fuel Stores (76,170)                 (76,170)              

(12,096,362)          (12,096,362)       

7.5

8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables 8.1 755,350,643         832,713,150      

Receivable from the Government of Sri Lanka 8.2 6,973,875             6,973,875          

Other Debtors 48,852,088           67,564,460        

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 159,647,848         151,382,104      

Staff Debtors 161,476,069         161,602,135      

Import Control 58,934,995           68,197,709        

 1,191,235,517      1,288,433,432   

Inventories pledged as collaterals to obtain various financial assistance from the financial institutions are

disclosed in Note No. 30 to these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

8.1 Trade Receivables

Total  Debtors 806,264,268           883,626,774         

Less: Provision for Impairment (50,913,625)            (50,913,625)          

755,350,643           832,713,150         

8.2 Receivable from the Government of Sri Lanka

6,879,542               6,879,542             

278,981,206           278,981,206         

Receivable from Parliament Affairs 94,333                    94,333                  

285,955,081           285,955,081         

Less: Provision for Impairment (278,981,206)          (278,981,206)        

6,973,875               6,973,875             

9 INCOME TAX RECEIVABLE

WHT Receivables 9,038,230               6,925,129             

ESC Receivables 203,476,482 165,978,111

212,514,712           172,903,239         

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances at Banks 7,989,149               13,963,657           

Petty Cash in Hand 4,825,402               5,305,601             

12,814,551             19,269,258           

11 STATED CAPITAL 

Issued and fully paid No of Shares 31,945,406 319,454,060           319,454,060         

12 CAPITAL RESERVE

12.1 Acquisition and Upgrading of Plant and Machinery 25,000,000             25,000,000           

23

The above Reserve is created from the Revenue Reserve during the year of 2008/2009 which would be utilized

for acquisition of heavy plant and machinery such as power plant, sterilizer etc.

Receivable from the Ministry of Livestock and Development

Receivable from  Government of Sri Lanka - Milk 

Subsidiary
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AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

13 SINKING FUND

Transferred from Retained Earnings 1,689,978                 

-                           1,689,978                 

14 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

At the Beginning of the Year -                           190,386,471             

Charge (to)/from Statement of Comprehensive Income -                           (190,386,471)            

At the End of the Year -                           -                            

14.1 Tax effect on Temporary Difference on Property, Plant and Equipment 784,548,101            589,435,761             

Tax effect on Temporary Difference on Retirement Benefit Obligations (91,219,106)             (73,823,134)              

Less: Tax effect on Temporary Differences on Tax Losses (949,598,697)           (704,424,211)            

Probable Deferred Tax Liability (256,269,701)           (188,811,584)            

15 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

15.1 Interest Bearing Borrowings

Payable within One Year                    15.1.1 to 15.1.4 135,419,841            123,568,773             

Payable after One Year                     15.1.1 to 15.1.4 18,572,055,438       18,202,111,219        

18,707,475,279       18,325,679,992        

15.1.1 Short term loans

Short term loans taken from Pan Asia Bank 15,727,311              -                            

15,727,311              -                            

15.1.2 Gross Lease Creditor

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 48,772,108              77,273,391               

During the Year Additions 27,049,248              -                            

During the Year Payments (30,448,356)             (28,501,283)              

Balance at the end of the Year 45,373,000              48,772,108               

Interest in  Suspense 

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 5,860,539                12,590,628               

On Lease Facility Obtained During the Year 6,236,748                -                            

Amount Transferred to Statement of Comprehensive Income (5,225,511)               (6,730,089)                

Balance at the End of the Year 6,871,776                5,860,539                 

Net Liability 38,501,224              42,911,569               

Current Maturity Portion 19,454,480              23,549,207               

Long-Term Maturity Portion 19,046,744              19,362,363               

38,501,224              42,911,569               

The Sinking Fund created from the proceeds of the cans sold to the farmers. The said fund will be utilized to meet

the financial requirement of purchases intended to issue on recovery basis to farmers in the future.

24

Deferred tax assets amounting to LKR 256,269,701 have not been recognised in the financial statements as there

are no sufficient taxable temporary differences or convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be

available against which the unrecognised deferred tax assets can be utilised by the Company.
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Rs. Rs.

15.1.3 Bank Loans and Borrowings 

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 361,686,067            363,545,693             

Received During the Year -                           100,000,000             

Less: During the Year Payments (122,936,197)           (101,859,626)            

Balance at the End of the Year 238,749,870            361,686,067             

Current Maturity Portion 100,238,050            100,019,567             

Long-Term Maturity Portion 138,511,820            261,666,500             

238,749,870            361,686,067             

 

15.1.4 Borrowings From  Treasury of The Government of Sri Lanka

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 17,921,082,356       15,781,118,709        

Granted During the Year 493,414,518            2,139,963,647          

Balance at the End of the Year 18,414,496,875       17,921,082,356        

Current Maturity Portion -                           -                            

Long-Term Maturity Portion 18,414,496,875       17,921,082,356        

18,414,496,875       17,921,082,356        

(a)

i.

ii.

iii.

Assets pledged as collaterals to above loans and borrowings are disclosed in note no. 30 to these financial

statements.

Subsequently, the Government of Sri Lanka entered into an on-lending agreement with Milco (Private) Limited for

the borrowings of Euro 33.7mn from the aforesaid party under the following conditions. 

Overdue charges at 2% per annum, in the event of default of payments.

Repayment of principal, interest, commitment fee, structuring fee and other costs shall be made in Rupees to the

Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka.

Milco (Pvt) Limited, on 31st December 2009, entered into an agreement with Desmi Contracting A/S, a company

incorporated in Denmark, for the modernization of processing factories (The Project) of the company at a cost of

Euro 33.7mn.

Cabinet paper No.12/1141/504/104 (Revision of original cabinet decision dated 23rd November 2011) presented

by the Minister of Finance and Planning on “Modernization of processing Factories of Milco (Private) Limited”

had been approved by the Cabinet on 18th August 2012 and accordingly, it was authorized to the Department of

External Resources to Borrow Euro 33.7mn from Export Credit Fund (EKF) of Denmark on the terms agreed upon

by the Ministry of Finance and Planning. It also authorized the Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka to sign an on-

lending agreement with Milco (Private) Limited.

An amount equivalent to Euro 2,274,016.40 is payable up-front as EKF Premium.
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(b)

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.
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As at 31st December 2019, the project was in progress, 50 shipments have been arrived to the location

for a value of EURO 37,424,319 (100% of the shipment value) and 19 milestone payments were

released to the contractor amounting to EURO 24,425,951

Milco (Private) Limited has not signed the subsidiary loan agreement with General Treasury to the

Government of Sri Lanka as yet.

Over due chargers at 2% per annum, in the event of default of payments.

Milco (Pvt) Limited, on 15
th

May 2015, entered into an agreement with Desmi Contracting A/S, a company

incorporated in Denmark, for establishment of a diary processing plant at Badalgama (The Project) of the 

company at a cost of Euro 63.9Mn.

Cabinet paper No.14/1399/511/001-i (Dated 9th October 2014) presented by the Ministry of Livestock

and Rural Community Development on “Establishment of a Dairy Processing Plant at Badalgama” was

approved by the Cabinet on 17
th

December 2014 and accordingly, authorized to the Department of

External Resources to Borrow Euro 63.9mn from Export Credit Fund (EKF) of Denmark on the terms

agreed upon by the Ministry of Livestock and Rural Community Development (Ref:MLRCD/03/15).

Subsequently, the Government of Sri Lanka entered in to an on-lending agreement behalf of the Milco

(Private) Limited with Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Limited (HSBC) for the borrowings of Euro

63.9mn from the aforesaid party under the following conditions. 

Repayment of principal, interest, commitment fee, structuring fee and other costs shall be made

in Rupees to the Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka.

An amount equivalent to Euro 2,234,919 is payable up-front as (Eksport Kredit Fonden/Export

Credit Fund) EKF Premium.

An amount equivalent to Euro 19,180,692.30 (30% of the contract value) has been paid to

Desmi Contracting A/S by Milco (Pvt) Ltd as an advance payment in 2015 pursuant to the terms

of contract
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AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

15.2 Non-Interest Bearing Borrowings

Long-Term Portion

National Milk Board 2,108,063           2,108,063             

2,108,063           2,108,063             

16 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION - GRATUITY

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 527,308,101       559,394,914         

Current Service Cost 36,401,372         29,093,239           

Interest Cost 61,853,240         57,953,313           

(Gain)/ Loss from Changes in Assumption 67,714,812         (80,551,142)         

Payment Made During the Year (41,712,485)       (38,582,223)         

Balance at the End of the Year 651,565,041       527,308,101         

The Principal Assumptions Used were as Follows:

Expected Salary Increment 10% p.a

Discount Rate 10.23% p.a

Staff Turnover Factor 5% p.a

Maximum Retirement Age 60 Years

Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed in Actuarial Valuation

Rs. Rs.

1% * 43,607,265         607,957,776         

-1% * (49,189,955)       700,754,996         

** 1% (51,822,354)       703,387,395         

** -1% 46,677,102         604,887,939         

* Salary Increment Rate 10% for the Company

** Discount Rate 10.23%

The sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position is the effect

of the assumed changes in discount rate and salary increment rate on the profit or loss and employment

benefit obligation for the year.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions

employed with all other variables held constant in the employee benefits liability measurement.

Increase/ (Decrease) 

in Salary Increment 

Rate

Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

in Discount 

Rate

Messrs. Actuarial & Management Consultants (Private) Limited Actuaries, carried out an actuarial

valuation of the defined benefit plan gratuity using the projected unit credit method as at 31
st

December,

2019. Appropriate and compatible assumptions were used in determining the cost of retirement benefits.
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Obligation 

 Effect on 
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Statement of 

Comprehensive 

Income 



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

17 GOVERNMENT GRANT

17.1 Balance at the Beginning of the Year 41,712,392         56,896,504           

Grant Received During the Year -                      4,573,003             

(12,632,398)       (19,757,115)         

Balance at the End of the Year 29,079,994         41,712,392           

17.2 Deferred Government Grant

Grant of Samanthurai 764,401              910,000                

Grant of Thimilathive 945,000              1,125,000             

Grant of Milk Cans 114,392              114,392                

Grant of 14 Sales Outlets 543,750              618,750                

Grant of LCRD 16,000,582         17,335,969           

Grant of Cooling tanks 6,086,091           16,982,502           

Grant of Electric Grass Cutters 52,776                52,776                  

Grants of Coolers 4,573,003           4,573,003             

29,079,994         41,712,392           

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Creditors 222,900,853       261,537,239         

Expense Creditors 424,278,363       237,010,677         

Other Payables 114,908,066       342,557,755         

762,087,282       841,105,671         
 

19 BANK OVERDRAFTS

Bank of Ceylon - 1758 855,850,737       725,746,361         

Bank of Ceylon - 1766 34,087,742         6,861,252             

People's Bank - 41180210331 209,859,167       203,436,653         

People's Bank - 41120210937 22,120,066         28,474,311           

People's Bank - Polgahawela 330,793              3,380,062             

BOC - Kandy City Branch - 9326 8,015,636           711,964                

People's Bank - 210332 9,932,147           15,108,872           

Bank of Ceylon 93,622                93,622                  

Pan Asia 100311007597 248,602,840       257,935,810         

Bank of Ceylon - 7963 1,582,596           1,918,545             

People's Bank - Kaduruwela 10,196,989         8,485,295             

People's Bank - Nuwara Eliya 5,860                  -                        

Pan Asia Bank 159,706              -                        

1,400,837,901    1,252,152,747      

28

Grant Recognized to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

During the Year



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

20 REVENUE

Gross Sales 10,509,415,104     11,849,851,230     

Nation Building Tax (195,594,831)         (237,507,209)         

10,313,820,273     11,612,344,021     

21 OTHER INCOME

Surcharges on Returned Cheques 6,415,722              11,213,726            

Non Refundable Deposit 42,500                   142,000                 

Non Refundable tender Deposit 513,000                 1,395,837              

Subsidy on Milk Powder Sales -                         212,222,190          

Differed Income 12,632,398            19,757,115            

Registration of Suppliers 3,572,000              2,881,000              

Sundry Income 2,226,434              231,951                 

Exchange Gain -                         88,548,642            

Fines & Surcharges 1,159,556              645,893                 

House Rent 1,782,804              1,421,552              

Sale of Unserviceable Items 579,231                 1,306,862              

Disposal gain 566,035                 12,600,907            

Margin on Liquid Milk Sale 220,042                 13,936,616            

 29,709,723            366,304,291          

22 FINANCE INCOME

19,930,044            18,586,884            

23,178,274            20,727,052            

Interest on Staff Loans 6,818,527              6,821,755              

49,926,845            46,135,691            

23 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Finance Lease 5,218,823.28         6,668,083              

Interest on Loans 38,258,234.33       38,063,199            

Interest on Bank Overdrafts 152,362,290.35     144,433,083          

195,839,348          189,164,365          

 For the Year 

Ended 

 For the Year 

Ended 

Interest on Call/Fixed Deposit - Local

Interest on Fixed Deposit - Foreign Currency (USD)
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED  As at  As at 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  31st December,  31st December, 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019  2019  2018 

 Rs.  Rs. 

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Current Income Tax Provision 24.1 -                            -                          

Deferred Tax Charge for the Year 14 -                            (190,386,471)         

Deferred Tax Charge against other comprehensive income -                            (11,277,160)           

-                            (201,663,631)         

24.1 Accounting Profit Before Taxation (862,714,548)            (683,449,491)         

Less: Income Considered Separately (50,492,880)              (134,684,332)         

Profit from Trade or Business (913,207,428)            (818,133,823)         

Less:

Business (Loss)/Profit Applicable Taxation -                            -                          

Tax Rate 14% 14%

Exempt Other Income -                            -                          

Liable Other Income 49,926,845               134,684,332           

Tax Rate 14% 14%

Tax on Chargeable Profit or Income 6,989,758                  13,982,705             

Tax Effect on Deductions (6,989,758)                (13,982,705)           

Provision for the Year (Tax on Adjusted Income) -                            -                          

25 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINERY SHARE

 2019  2018 

 Rs.  Rs. 

Net Profit/(loss) Attributable to Ordinary Shares (862,714,548)            (481,785,860)         

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Share 31,945,406               31,945,406             

(27.01)                       (15.08)                     

25.1 Diluted Earnings Per Share

Net allowable and Disallowable Eexpenses for Tax 

Purpose

30

There is no potentially diluted ordinary share of the company and as a result, the diluted earnings per share is the same

as basic earnings (loss) per share as shown above.

Basic Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the company by

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

(1,450,464,440)      (1,173,494,460)         



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

26 UNRECOGNIZED CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

27.1 Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as at the reporting date.  

27.2 Contingent Assets

There are no contingent assets as at the reporting date.

28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

28.1 Substantial Shareholding and Ultimate Ownership

28.2 Key Management Personnel Information

For the Year 

Ended

For the Year 

Ended31st December 31st December 

2019 2018

Short-term employee benefits               3,957,907               5,545,434 

28.3 Related Party Transactions

29 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

As per the declaration made by the directors of the company, there were no significant related party

transactions taken place throughout the period which would require to be disclosed as per Sri Lanka

Accounting Standards.

31

Comparative figures have been re-classified where necessary in line with the presentation requirements for the 

current year.

The company is a wholly owned government enterprise, which holds 100% ordinary shares of the

company. 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the company as well as its related parties, directly or

indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the company.

The remunaration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as 

follows:

There have been no capital commitments contracted but not provided for, or authorized by the board

but not contracted for, outstanding as at the reporting date except as detailed below.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

30 ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERALS

Following assets have been pledged as security against loans

Balance Balance

Loan / Outstanding Outstanding

Nature of Liabilities Facility As At As At

The Name of Granted 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Bank Rs. Rs. Rs. Repayment

Loan granted by Bank of Ceylon 700,000,000            11,666,500           186,666,520              Repayable in 120 equal monthly instalments of

Rs.5,833,335/-

Fixed Deposits Amounting US$ 2,920,652.78 of Bank of

Ceylon.

Loan granted by Bank of Ceylon 120,000,000            45,000,000           75,000,000                Repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments of

Rs.2,500,000/-

Fixed Deposits Amounting US$ 2,920,652.78 of Bank of

Ceylon.

Loan granted by Central Finance 12,484,000              47                         19,547                       Linear ice cream cup and cone filler with accessories

600,000,000            629,192,300         597,682,334              On Demand

139,500,000            187,669,547         181,026,572              On Demand Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 155,000,000.

Post Dated Cheque discounting facility 

provided by Bank of Ceylon
75,000,000              58,983,395           85,545                       

 On Demand Lodgment of Trade related Post dated Cheques.

Post Dated Cheque discounting facility 

provid by Pan Asia Bank
300,000,000            100,000,000         75,805,603                

 On Demand Lodgment of Trade related Post dated Cheques.

100,000,000            100,000,000         -                              On Demand 

32

Assets Pledged

Stock in trade movables and effect of the obligation including

stocks of packing materials and finished goods and other

moveable property lying in and upon or stored at No. 45,

Nawala Road, Narahenpita in the district of Colombo, Western

Province and present and or future book debts of the company.

Bank Overdraft facility provided by 

People's Bank

Bank Overdraft facility provided by Bank 

of Ceylon

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments of Rs.319,586/-

at the first 48 months and Rs. 4,998/- per month for

the rest.

Bank Overdraft facility provided by by Pan 

Asia Bank

Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 50,000,000 and lodgment of 

Trade related Post dated Cheques.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

31 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Accordingly, approval was grant to;

a. convert the loan on-lent to Milco (Pvt) Ltd, as equity contribution of General Treasury.

b. waive off the outstanding loan interest as at 31.12.2020

32 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.1 Fair Value of the Financial Instrument Carried at Amortized Cost

Carrying

 Amount Fair Value

 Rs.  Rs. 

Financial Assets

787,696,142        787,696,142        

1,031,587,670     1,031,587,670     

Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,814,551          12,814,551          

Total Financial Assets 1,832,098,363     1,832,098,363     

Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 723,395,542        723,395,542        

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 254,477,181        254,477,181        

Payable to the Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka 18,414,496,875   18,414,496,875   

Bank Overdraft 1,400,837,901     1,400,837,901     

Total Financial Liabilities 20,793,207,498   20,793,207,498   

There have been no material events that occurred between the reporting date and the date on which

the financial statements were authorized for issue that require adjustments to, or disclosures in the

Financial Statements, except following. 

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the company's

financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not

include the fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities.

Financial Instrument - Amortised cost

Trade and Other Receivables

Cabinet paper no. 21/0199/323/012 dated, 11.01.2021, presented by the Ministry of Agriculture on

"Modernization project of Polonnaruwa, Ambewela and Digana dairy factories" was approved by

the cabinet on 08.02.2021.
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

32.1 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Carried at Fair Value

Assets for which fair Value Approximate Carrying Value

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

33.1 Introduction

Risk Management Framework

Principal Financial Instruments

Instrument

·  Cash and Cash Equivalents

·  Trade and Other Payables

·  Bank Overdrafts

33.2 Credit Risk – Default Risk

·  Bank Loans

Credit risk is risk arising due to the uncertainty in counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations. The

risk of loss of principal or loss of a financial reward stemming from a borrower's failure to repay a

loan or otherwise meets a contractual obligation.

34

For the financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity, it is assumed that the

carrying amounts approximate their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits

and call deposits without a specific maturity period.

Risk is inherent in the company’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of

risk management is critical to the company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the

company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the

company’s risk management framework. The Board has delegated its authority to its key

management personnel who are responsible for developing and monitoring company’s risk

management policies. 

The principal financial instruments used by the company, from which financial instrument risk

arises, are as follows:

·  Trade Receivables 

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those

financial instruments which are not recorded at fair value in the financial statements.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

33.3 Liquidity Risk and Funding Management

The company’s primary objective in liquidity risk management is to ensure adequate funding for its businesses throughout market cycles.

33.3.1 Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities

 On Demand 
 Less than 

2 Months 

 2 to 12 

Months 
 1 to 5 Years  Over 5 Years  Total 

Company Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

-                     -                     -                     787,696,142      -                      787,696,142       

-                     1,031,587,670   -                     -                     -                      1,031,587,670    

Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,814,551        -                     -                     -                     -                      12,814,551         

Total Financial Assets 12,814,551        1,031,587,670   -                     787,696,142      -                      1,832,098,363    

Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables -                     723,395,542      -                     -                     -                      723,395,542       

-                     28,661,075        118,316,270      107,499,836      -                      254,477,181       

-                     -                     -                     -                     18,414,496,875   18,414,496,875   

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                      

Bank Overdraft 1,400,837,901   -                     -                     -                     -                      1,400,837,901    

Total Financial Liabilities 1,400,837,901   752,056,617      118,316,270      107,499,836      18,414,496,875   20,793,207,498   

(1,388,023,349)  279,531,053      (118,316,270)     680,196,306      (18,414,496,875) (18,961,109,135) 

33.4 Interest Rate Risk

As of the reporting date, the company has no interest rate sensitive financial assets or financial liabilities.

Liquidity risk refers to the possibility of company not having sufficient cash to meet its payment obligations. This arises primarily due to mismatches in the

maturity profile of company’s assets and liabilities. Adequate liquidity is critical to meet the company’s financial commitment and to accommodate additional

funding needs of the growing business volumes.

Financial Instrument - Held to Maturity

Trade and Other Receivables

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Payable to the Treasury of Government 

of Sri Lanka

Total Net Financial Assets/ 

(Liabilities) 

35

Interest rate risk is a key constitute of the market risk exposure of the company due to adverse and unanticipated movements in future interest rate which arises

from core business activities; granting of credit facilities, accepting deposits and issuing debt instruments.



 31st December,  31st December, 

2019 2018

Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue 10,313,820,273    11,612,344,021      

Cost of Sales I (9,917,539,530)     (11,385,405,568)     

Gross Profit 396,280,743         226,938,453           

Other Operating Income II 29,709,723           366,304,291           

425,990,466         593,242,745           

Administrative Expenses III (688,427,005)        (640,583,272)          

Distribution Expenses IV (399,206,715)        (475,008,669)          

Other Expenses V (55,158,791)          (18,071,620)            

Profit/ (Loss) from Operations (716,802,045)        (540,420,816)          

Finance Income VI 49,926,845           46,135,691             

Finance Expenses VII (195,839,348)        (189,164,365)          

Net Profit/ (Loss) Before Taxation (862,714,548)        (683,449,491)          

Income Tax Expenses -                        201,663,631           

Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year after Taxation (862,714,548)        (481,785,860)          

-      
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 DECEMBER, 2019

 For the Year 

Ended 

 For the Year 

Ended 



MILCO (PVT) LTD 

 For the Year 

Ended 

 For the Year 

Ended 

DETAIL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
ST

 DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

I. COST OF SALES

Cost of Purchase of Raw Milk 4,629,414,135     6,254,217,942    

Chilling Cost 425,531,416        421,442,468       

Development Cost 260,485,819        288,963,699       

Bowser Cost 247,967,584        294,113,152       

Net Stock Adjustments on Raw Materials 488,424               605,463              

Cost of Other Raw Materials 1,099,619,705     968,969,461       

Total Cost of Raw Materials 6,663,507,082     8,228,312,184    

Cost of Packing Materials 1,313,757,788     1,131,363,981    

Cost of Processing and Packing Labor 552,336,471        470,948,130       

Prime Cost 8,529,601,341     9,830,624,295    

Energy Cost

Furnace Oil 329,252,004        377,083,401       

Electricity 141,676,555        132,079,297       

Diesel 55,173,113          98,022,919         

Water 22,103,605          25,782,779         

Other Energy Cost 92,153                 56,439                

Total Energy Cost 548,297,430        633,024,835       

Other Consumables

Lab Chemicals 10,615,442          11,693,558         

Detergent & Cleaning Material 68,056,539          66,220,434         

Wages and Staff Welfare of Factory Staff 355,224,055        279,215,650       

Marginal Cost 9,511,794,807     10,820,778,773  

Factory Overheads

Depreciation of Plant and Machinery 459,788,527        459,494,249       

Repairs and Maintenance of Plant and Machinery 194,149,607        195,496,533       

Repairs and Maintenance of Buildings 9,643,643            22,053,156         

Transport 3,591,535            2,128,738           

Insurance 30,730,303          29,049,708         

Total Factory Overheads 697,903,615        708,222,383       

Total Cost of Production 10,209,698,421   11,529,001,156  

Net Stock/ Transfer Adjustments on Finish Goods (224,638,837)      (224,449,597)      

Adjustment for Changes in Actuary Assumption (67,714,812)        80,551,142         

Unrealised profit adjustment 194,758               302,867              

9,917,539,530     11,385,405,568  
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MILCO (PVT) LTD 

DETAIL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

II. OTHER INCOME

Surcharges on Returned Cheques 6,415,722            11,213,726         

Non Refundable Deposit 42,500                 142,000              

Non Refundable tender Deposit 513,000               1,395,837           

Subsidy on Milk Powder Sales -                      212,222,190       

Differed Income 12,632,398          19,757,115         

Registration of Suppliers 3,572,000            2,881,000           

Sundry Income 2,226,434            231,951              

Exchange Gain -                      88,548,642         

Fines & Surcharges 1,159,556            645,893              

House Rent 1,782,804            1,421,552           

Sale of Unserviceable Items 579,231               1,306,862           

Disposal gain 566,035               12,600,907         

Margin on Liquid Milk Sale 220,042               13,936,616         

 29,709,723          366,304,291       

III. PERSONNEL EXPENSES 

Staff Salaries 229,043,057        225,812,029       

Staff Allowances 13,608,970          18,625,959         

Contributions to Employees' Provident Fund 21,496,286          20,783,117         

Contributions to Employees' Trust Fund 5,360,949            5,205,863           

Provision for Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity 40,298,106          903,430              

Overtime 13,037,938          12,065,910         

Staff Bonus 13,952,543          10,276,133         

Casual Wages 1,781,277            2,931,757           

Overtime 22,200                 23,800                

E.P.F. 10,720                 12,443                

E.T.F. 2,680                   3,111                  

Incentives 1,220,359            1,315,510           

Leave Payment 10,330,764          14,624,543         

Transport Allowance 3,853,696            3,192,222           

Fuel Allowances 1,235,848            1,563,935           

Staff Training 671,600               1,113,450           

Medical expenses 1,982,018            2,408,865           

Death Donation 280,000               150,000              

Gift Vouchers 350,378               364,146              

Staff Welfare 13,497,107          13,926,488         

Mid day Allowance 359,010               490,721              

Field Allowance                                             560,600               562,050              

Uniform 243,935               54,157                

Telephone Allowances 123,500               195,166              

373,323,541        336,604,805       
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MILCO (PVT) LTD 

For the Year 

Ended

For the Year 

Ended

DETAIL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

III.I ADMINISTRATION AND ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES 

Repairs and Maintenance                          38,610,720          40,141,160         

Directors Expense 6,518,158            7,640,118           

Travelling 9,923,389            7,014,862           

Garden Maintains 11,617,039          12,323,610         

Bank Charges 2,685,539            2,858,392           

Bungalow Expenses 1,480,378            1,738,269           

Quality Control Expenses 1,622,190            2,253,062           

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 29,342,782          34,457,858         

Legal Charges 4,982,320            3,538,723           

Printing and Stationary 12,495,734          10,549,616         

Security Charges 54,222,339          54,228,567         

PEST control 556,800               122,400              

Sundry Expenses 1,011,907            3,898,369           

Electricity expenses 13,900,139          13,012,863         

Water expenses 718,818               679,352              

Rent & Rates 20,959,813          20,695,776         

Stamp Expenses 16,826                 (7,915)                 

Postege Expenses 338,883               385,724              

Advertisment 546,171               688,210              

News Papers & Periodicals 524,480               528,010              

Vehicle License 359,693               145,895              

Vehicle Hiring 3,484,858            2,677,101           

Accounting & Auditing expenses 8,628,939            9,970,428           

Consultancy Charges 5,656,123            4,943,731           

Insurance 28,002,155          15,318,689         

Fuel Expenses 29,320,421          31,840,428         

DESMI Project Expenses 3,004,165            -                      

Telephones Expenses 5,480,713            6,995,889           

ESC - Write Off 15,364,873          12,434,370         

Other Expense 94,511                 983,153              

Entertainment Expenses 1,066,002            904,242              

Stud Bull Project -                      661,016              

Non Refundable Deposits -                      356,500              

Exchange loss 2,566,588            -                      

315,103,463        303,978,467       

Total Administration Expenses 688,427,005        640,583,272       
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MILCO (PVT) LTD 

For the Year 

Ended

For the Year 

Ended

DETAIL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

IV. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Advertisements and Sales Promotion 68,377,727          83,447,686         

Transport Expenses 115,743,779        135,416,772       

Sales Commission 28,282,771          58,593,641         

Warehousing Chargers 8,948,457            22,690,119         

Vehicle hiring chargers 40,137,026          40,534,143         

Out Let Expense 124,688,644        106,614,058       

Repair & Maintanance of Motor Vehicle 476,827               14,903                

Repairs & Maintenance of Bottle Coolers 63,266                 48,383                

Fuel 731,999               1,014,951           

Free issues and write off of Finish Goods 11,756,219          26,634,013         

399,206,715        475,008,669       

V. OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on Milk Transfers -                      15,057,783         

Stock write-off- Finish goods 47,180,280          3,013,837           

Stock write-off- Raw & packing materials 7,978,511            -                      

55,158,791          18,071,620         

VI. FINANCE  INCOME

Interest on call/fixed deposit 19,930,044          18,586,884         

Interest on Fixed Deposit - Foreign Currency (USD) 23,178,274          20,727,052         

Interest on Distress Loan 6,453,526            6,512,797           

Interest on Motor Cycle Loan 204,218               202,634              

Interest on Special Loan 160,782               106,324              

49,926,845          46,135,691         

VII. FINANCE  COSTS

Interest on Bank Overdrafts 152,362,290        144,433,083       

Lease Interest 5,218,823            6,668,083           

Loan Interest 38,258,234          38,063,199         

195,839,348        189,164,365       
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

As at As at

 31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

ASSETS Note Rs. Rs.

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6,065,801,089         6,451,500,834        

Capital Work-In-Progress 4 12,588,158,537      11,894,455,027      

Financial Instrument - Amortised cost 5 787,696,142            769,263,440           

Long-term Advances 6 139,152,682            356,287,245           

Total Non-Current Assets 19,580,808,449      19,471,506,547      

Current Assets

Inventories 7 1,093,130,830         1,505,734,350        

Trade and Other Receivables 8 1,191,235,517         1,288,433,432        

Income Tax Receivable 9 212,514,712            172,903,239           

Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 12,814,551              19,269,258             

Total Current Assets 2,509,695,611         2,986,340,280        

Total Assets 22,090,504,060      22,457,846,827      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Stated Capital and Reserves

Stated Capital 11 319,454,060            319,454,060           

Capital Reserve 12 25,000,000              25,000,000             

Revaluation Reserve 336,454,463            336,454,463           

Sinking Fund 13 1,689,978                1,689,978               

Retained Earnings (145,248,000)          785,181,360           

Shareholders' Fund 537,350,500            1,467,779,860        

 

Non-Current Liabilities  

Deferred Tax Liability 14 -                           -                           

Non-interest Bearing Borrowings 15 2,108,063                2,108,063               

Interest Bearing Borrowings - Long-Term 15 18,572,055,438      18,202,111,219

Retirement Benefit Obligations - Gratuity 16 651,565,041            527,308,101           

Deferred Income - Government Grant 17 29,079,994              41,712,392             

Total Non-Current Liabilities 19,254,808,536      18,773,239,775      

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 18 762,087,282            841,105,671           

Interest Bearing Borrowings - Short Term 15 135,419,841            123,568,773           

Bank Overdrafts 19 1,400,837,901         1,252,152,747        

Total Current Liabilities 2,298,345,024         2,216,827,191        

Total Equity and Liabilities 22,090,504,060      22,457,846,827      

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 36 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

I certify that these Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

………………………………

Mr. M. G. P. Premathilaka

Manager- Finance 

The Board of Directors  is  responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.

Approved and Signed for and on behalf of the Board on ………………………

………………………………  ………………………………

Mr. L. B. Wickramasinghe ………………………………

Chairman Director
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
ST

 DECEMBER, 2019

31
st
 December, 31

st
 December,

2019 2018

Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue 20 10,313,820,273     11,612,344,021   

Cost of Sales (9,917,539,530)      (11,385,405,568) 

Gross Profit 396,280,743          226,938,453        

Other Operating Income 21 29,709,723            366,304,291        

425,990,466          593,242,745        

Administrative Expenses (688,427,005)         (640,583,272)      

Distribution Expenses (399,206,715)         (475,008,669)      

Other Expenses (55,158,791)           (18,071,620)        

Profit/ (Loss) from Operations (716,802,045)         (540,420,816)      

Finance Income 22 49,926,845            46,135,691         

Finance Expenses 23 (195,839,348)         (189,164,365)      

Net Loss Before Taxation (862,714,548)         (683,449,491)      

Income Tax Expenses 24 (9,480,074)            201,663,631        

Net Loss for the Year after Taxation (872,194,622)         (481,785,860)      

Other Comprehensive Income  

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remessurement of Defined Benefit Plan, Net of Taxes (58,234,738)           69,273,982         

Total Other Comprehensive Income Net of Tax (58,234,738)           69,273,982         

Total Comprehensive Income (930,429,360)         (412,511,878)      

Basic Earning/(Loss) Per Share 25 (27.30)                   (15.08)                 

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 36 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

 For the Year 

Ended 

2

 For the Year 

Ended 



Stated Capital Revaluation Sinking Retained

Capital Reserve Reserve Fund Earnings Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 31st December 2017 319,454,060     25,000,000       336,454,463     1,689,978         1,197,693,238  1,880,291,738  

Net Profit for the Year -                    -                    -                    -                    (481,785,860)    (481,785,860)    

Other Comprehensive Income -                    -                    -                    -                    69,273,982       69,273,982       

 

Balance as at 31st December 2018 319,454,060     25,000,000       336,454,463     1,689,978         785,181,360     1,467,779,860  

Net Profit for the Year -                    -                    -                    -                    (930,429,360)    (930,429,360)    

Other Comprehensive Income -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Balance as at 31st December 2019 319,454,060     25,000,000       336,454,463     1,689,978         (145,248,000)    537,350,500     

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 36 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

3



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

As at As at

31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Cash Flow from Operating Activities Rs. Rs.

Net Loss Before Taxation (862,714,548)     (683,449,491)     

Adjustments for ;

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 527,623,340       542,428,556      

Income from Investment (49,926,845)       (46,135,691)       

Interest Expense 190,620,525       182,496,282      

Lease Interest 5,225,511           6,730,089          

Recognized Income on Deferred Grants (12,632,398)       (19,757,115)       

Exchange Gain 2,566,588           (88,548,642)       

Provision for Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity 98,254,612         87,046,552        

Disposal Gain (566,035)            (12,600,907)       

ESC Weitten off 15,364,873         12,434,370        

Capital work-in progress written off 741,099              -                     

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (85,443,279)       (19,355,997)       

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 412,603,520       238,629,532      

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 95,115,502         198,690,823      

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (73,730,889)       (36,230,360)       

Cash Generated from Operations 348,544,854       381,733,998      

Interest Paid (190,620,525)     (182,496,282)     

Tax Paid -  ESC and Income Tax (52,893,933)       (60,035,055)       

Payment of Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity (41,712,485)       (38,582,223)       

Net Cash From/ (Used In) Operating Activities 63,317,912         100,620,438      

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (87,503,835)       (102,363,192)     

Investments in Property, Plant and Equipment in the Course of Construction (516,304,352)     (1,695,632,797)  

Proceeds from disposal of Assets 665,582              12,670,787        

Interest Received 49,926,845         46,135,691        

New/ (Withdrawal) Short-Term and Long-Term Investment (Net) (20,999,289)       (72,298,872)       

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (574,215,049)     (1,811,488,384)  

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Government Grant Received -                     4,573,003          

Lease Rental Paid (30,448,356)       (28,501,283)       

During the Year Loan Granted 509,141,829       2,239,963,647   

Loans and  Borrowings Repayments (122,936,197)     (101,859,626)     

Adjustment of exchange impact in long term advances -                     (543,766,109)     

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities 355,757,276       1,570,409,632   

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (155,139,861)     (140,458,314)     

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (Note A) (1,232,883,488)  (1,092,425,174)  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Note B) (1,388,023,349)  (1,232,883,488)  
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - (Contd..)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

As at As at

31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

At the Beginning of the Year

Balances at Banks 13,963,657         20,487,923        

Petty Cash in Hand 5,305,601           4,260,251          

19,269,258         24,748,174        

Bank Overdrafts (1,252,152,747)  (1,117,173,348)  

(1,232,883,489)  (1,092,425,174)  

At the End of the Year

Balances at Banks 7,989,149           13,963,657        

Petty Cash in Hand 4,825,402           5,305,601          

12,814,551         19,269,258        

Bank Overdrafts (1,400,837,901)  (1,252,152,747)  

(1,388,023,350)  (1,232,883,488)  

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 36 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a) Tangible assets

 

Balance Balance Balance Balance

As At Additions As At As At Charge On As At As At As At

01.01.2019 Disposals 31.12.2019 01.01.2019 for the Year Disposals 31.12.2019 01.01.2019 31.12.2019

Description of Assets Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Freehold

Land 3,250,000          -                 -                  -                      3,250,000          -                     -                 -                    3,250,000          3,250,000           

Buildings 507,345,106      2,876,067       -                  -                      510,221,172      129,024,894      42,472,865     171,497,759      378,320,212      338,723,413       

Plant and Machinery 7,375,587,018   46,232,055     -                  11,378,100          7,433,197,173   1,531,318,511   397,436,776   1,928,755,287   5,844,268,507   5,504,441,887    

Furniture and Fittings 45,887,661        4,794,545       -                  -                      50,682,206        37,509,607        3,230,290       40,739,897        8,378,053          9,942,308           

Laboratory Equipment 77,485,874        5,030,394       -                  -                      82,516,268        53,179,696        7,425,785       60,605,481        24,306,178        21,910,788         

Motor Vehicles 97,101,450        -                 (2,250,000)      48,000,958          142,852,408      96,242,880        3,180,658       (2,228,788)       97,194,750        858,570             45,657,658         

Tools and Equipment 322,203,703      11,543,262     -                  -                      333,746,966      244,312,620      26,125,415     270,438,034      77,891,084        63,308,931         

Bottles and Crates 349,496,153      5,814,173       -                  -                      355,310,326      302,855,435      20,568,620     323,424,055      46,640,718        31,886,271         

Computer Equipment 48,134,443        4,369,288       -                  -                      52,503,731        32,267,911        5,931,322       38,199,234        15,866,532        14,304,497         

Bottle Coolers 148,634,639      3,465,905       -                  -                      152,100,544      138,813,799      3,819,502       142,633,301      9,820,840          9,467,243           

Office Equipment 9,964,767          319,339         (86,121)           -                      10,197,986        7,050,391          944,765         (7,786)              7,987,370          2,914,376          2,210,616           

Milk Cans 80,176,804        2,045             -                  -                      80,178,849        58,811,020        6,392,997       65,204,017        21,365,784        14,974,832         

9,065,267,617   84,447,074     (2,336,121)      59,379,058          9,206,757,629   2,631,386,764   517,528,994   (2,236,574)       3,146,679,184   6,433,880,853   6,060,078,444    

b) Intangible Assets

Computer Software 2,837,209          -                 -                  -                      2,837,209          2,632,871          83,333           2,716,204          204,338             121,005              

c) Leasehold Assets

Motor Vehicles 75,245,958        17,294,907     -                  (19,097,898)         73,442,966        57,830,315        10,011,012     67,841,327        17,415,643        5,601,639           

Total 9,143,350,784   101,741,981   (2,336,121)      40,281,160          9,283,037,804   2,691,849,950   527,623,340   (2,236,574)       3,217,236,716   6,451,500,834   6,065,801,089    

3.1 Transfers

Transfer of motor vehicles includes capitalization of lorry chasis under development amounting to Rs.27,616,206 and fixing of two bowser tanks amounting to Rs. 1,286,854.

Cost/Valuation Depreciation

 Transfers  

Written Down Value

20



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Balance Incurred  Capitalized/  Balance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As At During the Charged As At

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 01.01.2019 Period During the Period 31.12.2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

4. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Construction of New Milk Factory - Badalgama (Refer Note 15) * 10,957,945,499   713,780,796        -                      11,671,726,295   

Construction of Gatabe Sales Outlet 150,000               -                      -                      150,000               

Installation of Cup & Cone Filler at Digana Milk Factory 15,445,587          -                      -                      15,445,587          

Modernization of Factories- Polonnaruwa,Ambewela and Digana (Refer Note 15) * 790,264,562        -                      -                      790,264,562        

Development Projects at Ambewela Milk Factory 71,342,562          -                      -                      71,342,562          

Construction of Cool Room at Polonnaruwa Milk Factory 11,378,100          -                      (11,378,100)        -                  

Pro- Fit Management Information System Implementation 2,571,770            1,607,760            -                      4,179,530            

Construction of Chilling Centre- Palathoppur 26,190                 714,909               (741,099)             -                  

Lorry Chasis Under Development 45,330,756          -                      (27,616,206)        17,714,550          

Construction of Chilling Centre- Lunugala -                      57,500                 -                      57,500                 

Construction of building at Ambewela Milk Factory -                      7,055,125            -                      7,055,125            

Construction of office building at Digana Milk Factory -                      10,222,824          -                      10,222,824          

11,894,455,027   733,438,915        (39,735,405)        12,588,158,537   

4.1

4.2

4.3 Expenses incured on Construction of Chilling Centre- Palathoppur has been charged to income statement during the year. 

21

As detailed in note no 15 to these financial statements, modernization of the above factories and construction of New Milk Factory - Badalgama have been financed by 

loans granted by the Treasury of the Government of Sri Lanka. 

Developments carried at Ambewela milk factory including "Power Expansion System, Construction of Water Tank and Refrigaration plant, Construction of Equilization 

tank, Establishment of new generators".



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - AMORTISED COST

5.1 Long-Term Fixed Deposits

Fixed Deposits - BOC - US $ 578,599,135         559,058,332       

Fixed Deposits - PB & PABC 209,097,006         210,205,108       

787,696,142         769,263,440       

6 LONG TERM ADVANCES

Advance to DESMI - Relocate CMF to Badalgama

Balance at the beginning of the year 356,287,245         560,536,942       

Adjustment of exchange impact -                        543,766,109       

Transferred to Capital Work in Progress (217,134,563)        (748,015,807)     

Balance at the end of the year 139,152,682         356,287,245       

7 INVENTORIES

Raw and Packing Materials 7.1 321,342,530         387,696,803       

Work-in-Progress 5,895,808             2,989,381           

Finished Goods 218,770,084         677,601,473       

Consumables 7.2 548,245,734         441,729,431       

Goods in Transit 7.3 10,973,035           7,813,624           

Provision for Inventory 7.4 (12,096,362)          (12,096,362)       

1,093,130,830      1,505,734,350    

7.1 Raw and Packing Materials

Raw Materials - Dairy Production 70,799,062           82,419,493         

Packing Material 230,784,760         274,243,365       

Raw Milk Stock 12,722,205           23,997,441         

Bottle Cooler Stock 3,496,313             3,496,313           

Drugs and Other Stock 3,540,190             3,540,190           

321,342,530         387,696,803       

As detailed in note no 15 to these financial statements, establishment of a diary processing plant at Badalgama

has been financed by a loan granted by the Treasury of the Government of Sri Lanka. On 22/10/2015, Treasury

of Government of Sri Lanka made advance payment of an amount equivalent to EURO 19,180,692 (30% of the

contract value)

22

Investments pledged as collaterals to obtain various financial assistance from the financial institutions are

disclosed in note no. 30 to these financial statements.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

7.2 Consumables

General Stores 53,108,135           50,418,442         

Engineering Stores 443,052,222         339,872,187       

Motor Stores 13,159,699           12,570,054         

Fuel and Lubricant  Stores 29,896,808           29,839,877         

Milk Can Stock 9,028,871             9,028,871           

 548,245,734         441,729,431       

7.3 Goods In Transit

Finished Goods in Transit 5,151,487             4,837,300           

Goods in Transit Lab Equipment 125,798                125,798              

Raw Milk In Transit 4,827,551             2,755,326           

Yogurt Culture 868,200                95,200                

 10,973,035           7,813,624           

7.4 Provision For Inventory

Packing Material (10,163,806)          (10,163,806)       

General Stores (332,731)               (332,731)            

Engineering Stores (1,523,655)            (1,523,655)         

Fuel Stores (76,170)                 (76,170)              

(12,096,362)          (12,096,362)       

7.5

8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables 8.1 755,350,643         832,713,150       

Receivable from the Government of Sri Lanka 8.2 6,973,875             6,973,875           

Other Debtors 48,852,088           67,564,460         

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 159,647,848         151,382,104       

Staff Debtors 161,476,069         161,602,135       

Import Control 58,934,995           68,197,709         

 1,191,235,517      1,288,433,432    

Inventories pledged as collaterals to obtain various financial assistance from the financial institutions are

disclosed in Note No. 30 to these financial statements. 
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

8.1 Trade Receivables

Total  Debtors 806,264,268           883,626,774         

Less: Provision for Impairment (50,913,625)            (50,913,625)          

755,350,643           832,713,150         

8.2 Receivable from the Government of Sri Lanka

6,879,542               6,879,542             

278,981,206           278,981,206         

Receivable from Parliament Affairs 94,333                    94,333                  

285,955,081           285,955,081         

Less: Provision for Impairment (278,981,206)          (278,981,206)        

6,973,875               6,973,875             

9 INCOME TAX RECEIVABLE

WHT Receivables 9,038,230               6,925,129             

ESC Receivables 203,476,482 165,978,111

212,514,712           172,903,239         

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances at Banks 7,989,149               13,963,657           

Petty Cash in Hand 4,825,402               5,305,601             

12,814,551             19,269,258           

11 STATED CAPITAL 

Issued and fully paid No of Shares 31,945,406 319,454,060           319,454,060         

12 CAPITAL RESERVE

12.1 Acquisition and Upgrading of Plant and Machinery 25,000,000             25,000,000           

24

The above Reserve is created from the Revenue Reserve during the year of 2008/2009 which would be utilized

for acquisition of heavy plant and machinery such as power plant, sterilizer etc.

Receivable from the Ministry of Livestock and Development

Receivable from  Government of Sri Lanka - Milk 

Subsidiary



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

13 SINKING FUND

Transferred from Retained Earnings 1,689,978                 

-                           1,689,978                 

14 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

At the Beginning of the Year 190,386,471             

Charge (to)/from Statement of Comprehensive Income (190,386,471)            

At the End of the Year -                           -                            

14.1 Tax effect on Temporary Difference on Property, Plant and Equipment 589,435,761             

Tax effect on Temporary Difference on Retirement Benefit Obligations (73,823,134)              

Less: Tax effect on Temporary Differences on Tax Losses (704,424,211)            

Probable Deferred Tax Liability -                           (188,811,584)            

15 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

15.1 Interest Bearing Borrowings

Payable within One Year                    15.1.1 to 15.1.4 135,419,841            123,568,773             

Payable after One Year                     15.1.1 to 15.1.4 18,572,055,438       18,202,111,219        

18,707,475,279       18,325,679,992        

15.1.1 Short term loans

Short term loans taken from Pan Asia Bank 15,727,311              -                            

15,727,311              -                            

15.1.2 Gross Lease Creditor

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 48,772,108              77,273,391               

During the Year Additions 27,049,248              -                            

During the Year Payments (30,448,356)             (28,501,283)              

Balance at the end of the Year 45,373,000              48,772,108               

Interest in  Suspense 

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 5,860,539                 12,590,628               

On Lease Facility Obtained During the Year 6,236,748                 -                            

Amount Transferred to Statement of Comprehensive Income (5,225,511)               (6,730,089)                

Balance at the End of the Year 6,871,776                 5,860,539                 

Net Liability 38,501,224              42,911,569               

Current Maturity Portion 19,454,480              23,549,207               

Long-Term Maturity Portion 19,046,744              19,362,363               

38,501,224              42,911,569               

The Sinking Fund created from the proceeds of the cans sold to the farmers. The said fund will be utilized to meet

the financial requirement of purchases intended to issue on recovery basis to farmers in the future.

25

Deferred tax assets amounting to LKR 188,811.584 have not been recognised in the financial statements as there are

no sufficient taxable temporary differences or convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available

against which the unrecognised deferred tax assets can be utilised by the Company.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

15.1.3 Bank Loans and Borrowings 

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 361,686,067            363,545,693             

Received During the Year -                           100,000,000             

Less: During the Year Payments (122,936,197)           (101,859,626)            

Balance at the End of the Year 238,749,870            361,686,067             

Current Maturity Portion 100,238,050            100,019,567             

Long-Term Maturity Portion 138,511,820            261,666,500             

238,749,870            361,686,067             

 

15.1.4 Borrowings From  Treasury of The Government of Sri Lanka

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 17,921,082,356       15,781,118,709        

Granted During the Year 493,414,518            2,139,963,647          

Balance at the End of the Year 18,414,496,875       17,921,082,356        

Current Maturity Portion -                           -                            

Long-Term Maturity Portion 18,414,496,875       17,921,082,356        

18,414,496,875       17,921,082,356        

(a)

i.

ii.

iii.
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Overdue charges at 2% per annum, in the event of default of payments.

Repayment of principal, interest, commitment fee, structuring fee and other costs shall be made in Rupees to the

Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka.

Milco (Pvt) Limited, on 31st December 2009, entered into an agreement with Desmi Contracting A/S, a company

incorporated in Denmark, for the modernization of processing factories (The Project) of the company at a cost of

Euro 33.7mn.

Cabinet paper No.12/1141/504/104 (Revision of original cabinet decision dated 23rd November 2011) presented by

the Minister of Finance and Planning on “Modernization of processing Factories of Milco (Private) Limited” had

been approved by the Cabinet on 18th August 2012 and accordingly, it was authorized to the Department of

External Resources to Borrow Euro 33.7mn from Export Credit Fund (EKF) of Denmark on the terms agreed upon

by the Ministry of Finance and Planning. It also authorized the Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka to sign an on-

lending agreement with Milco (Private) Limited.

An amount equivalent to Euro 2,274,016.40 is payable up-front as EKF Premium.

Assets pledged as collaterals to above loans and borrowings are disclosed in note no. 30 to these financial

statements.

Subsequently, the Government of Sri Lanka entered into an on-lending agreement with Milco (Private) Limited for

the borrowings of Euro 33.7mn from the aforesaid party under the following conditions. 



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

(b)

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.
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As at 31st December 2018, the project was in progress, 43 shipments have been arrived to the location

for a value of EURO 36,630,705.55 (100% of the shipment value) and 14 milestone payments were

released to the contractor amounting to EURO 21,721,006.23

Milco (Private) Limited has not signed the subsidiary loan agreement with General Treasury to the

Government of Sri Lanka as yet.

Over due chargers at 2% per annum, in the event of default of payments.

Milco (Pvt) Limited, on 15
th

May 2015, entered into an agreement with Desmi Contracting A/S, a company

incorporated in Denmark, for establishment of a diary processing plant at Badalgama (The Project) of the

company at a cost of Euro 63.9Mn.

Cabinet paper No.14/1399/511/001-i (Dated 9th October 2014) presented by the Ministry of Livestock

and Rural Community Development on “Establishment of a Dairy Processing Plant at Badalgama” was

approved by the Cabinet on 17
th

December 2014 and accordingly, authorized to the Department of

External Resources to Borrow Euro 63.9mn from Export Credit Fund (EKF) of Denmark on the terms

agreed upon by the Ministry of Livestock and Rural Community Development (Ref:MLRCD/03/15).

Subsequently, the Government of Sri Lanka entered in to an on-lending agreement behalf of the Milco

(Private) Limited with Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Limited (HSBC) for the borrowings of Euro

63.9mn from the aforesaid party under the following conditions. 

Repayment of principal, interest, commitment fee, structuring fee and other costs shall be made

in Rupees to the Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka.

An amount equivalent to Euro 2,234,919 is payable up-front as (Eksport Kredit Fonden/Export

Credit Fund) EKF Premium.

An amount equivalent to Euro 19,180,692.30 (30% of the contract value) has been paid to Desmi

Contracting A/S by Milco (Pvt) Ltd as an advance payment in 2015 pursuant to the terms of

contract



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December, 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

15.2 Non-Interest Bearing Borrowings

Long-Term Portion

National Milk Board 2,108,063           2,108,063             

2,108,063           2,108,063             

16 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION - GRATUITY

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 527,308,101       559,394,914         

Current Service Cost 36,401,372         29,093,239           

Interest Cost 61,853,240         57,953,313           

(Gain)/ Loss from Changes in Assumption 67,714,812         (80,551,142)         

Payment Made During the Year (41,712,485)        (38,582,223)         

Balance at the End of the Year 651,565,041       527,308,101         

The Principal Assumptions Used were as Follows:

Expected Salary Increment 10% p.a

Discount Rate 10.23% p.a

Staff Turnover Factor 5% p.a

Maximum Retirement Age 60 Years

Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed in Actuarial Valuation

Rs. Rs.

1% * 43,607,265         607,957,776         

-1% * (49,189,955)        700,754,996         

** 1% (51,822,354)        703,387,395         

** -1% 46,677,102         604,887,939         

* Salary Increment Rate 10% for the Company

** Discount Rate 10.23%

28

 Effect on 

Employee Benefit 

Obligation 

 Effect on 

Change to 

Statement of 

Comprehensive 

Income 

The sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position is the effect

of the assumed changes in discount rate and salary increment rate on the profit or loss and employment

benefit obligation for the year.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions

employed with all other variables held constant in the employee benefits liability measurement.

Increase/ (Decrease) 

in Salary Increment 

Rate

Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

in Discount 

Rate

Messrs. Actuarial & Management Consultants (Private) Limited Actuaries, carried out an actuarial

valuation of the defined benefit plan gratuity using the projected unit credit method as at 31
st

December,

2018. Appropriate and compatible assumptions were used in determining the cost of retirement benefits.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED As at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31st December,

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 2018

Rs.

17 GOVERNMENT GRANT

17.1 Balance at the Beginning of the Year 41,712,392         56,896,504           

Grant Received During the Year -                     4,573,003             

(12,632,398)        (19,757,115)         

Balance at the End of the Year 29,079,994         41,712,392           

17.2 Deferred Government Grant

Grant of Samanthurai 764,401              910,000                

Grant of Thimilathive 945,000              1,125,000             

Grant of Milk Cans 114,392              114,392                

Grant of 14 Sales Outlets 543,750              618,750                

Grant of LCRD 16,000,582         17,335,969           

Grant of Cooling tanks 6,086,091           16,982,502           

Grant of Electric Grass Cutters 52,776                52,776                  

Grants of Coolers 4,573,003           4,573,003             

29,079,994         41,712,392           

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Creditors 222,900,853       261,537,239         

Expense Creditors 424,278,363       237,010,677         

Other Payables 114,908,066       342,557,755         

762,087,282       841,105,671         
 

19 BANK OVERDRAFTS

Bank of Ceylon - 1758 855,850,737       725,746,361         

Bank of Ceylon - 1766 34,087,742         6,861,252             

People's Bank - 41180210331 209,859,167       203,436,653         

People's Bank - 41120210937 22,120,066         28,474,311           

People's Bank - Polgahawela 330,793              3,380,062             

BOC - Kandy City Branch - 9326 8,015,636           711,964                

People's Bank - 210332 9,932,147           15,108,872           

Bank of Ceylon 93,622                93,622                  

Pan Asia 100311007597 248,602,840       257,935,810         

Bank of Ceylon - 7963 1,582,596           1,918,545             

People's Bank - Kaduruwela 10,196,989         8,485,295             

People's Bank - Nuwara Eliya 5,860                  

Pan Asia Bank 159,706              

1,400,837,901    1,252,152,747      

29

Grant Recognized to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

During the Year



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019 31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

20 REVENUE

Gross Sales 10,509,415,104     11,849,851,230     

Nation Building Tax (195,594,831)         (237,507,209)         

10,313,820,273     11,612,344,021     

21 OTHER INCOME

Surcharges on Returned Cheques 6,415,722              11,213,726            

Non Refundable Deposit 42,500                   142,000                 

Non Refundable tender Deposit 513,000                 1,395,837              

Subsidy on Milk Powder Sales -                         212,222,190          

Differed Income 12,632,398            19,757,115            

Registration of Suppliers 3,572,000              2,881,000              

Sundry Income 2,226,434              231,951                 

Exchange Gain -                         88,548,642            

Fines & Surcharges 1,159,556              645,893                 

House Rent 1,782,804              1,421,552              

Sale of Unserviceable Items 579,231                 1,306,862              

Disposal gain 566,035                 12,600,907            

Margin on Liquid Milk Sale 220,042                 13,936,616            

 29,709,723            366,304,291          

22 FINANCE INCOME

19,930,044            18,586,884            

23,178,274            20,727,052            

Interest on Staff Loans 6,818,527              6,821,755              

49,926,845            46,135,691            

23 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Finance Lease 5,218,823.28         6,668,083              

Interest on Loans 38,258,234.33       38,063,199            

Interest on Bank Overdrafts 152,362,290.35     144,433,083          

195,839,348          189,164,365          

 For the Year 

Ended 

 For the Year 

Ended 

Interest on Call/Fixed Deposit - Local

Interest on Fixed Deposit - Foreign Currency (USD)

30



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED  As at  As at 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  31st December,  31st December, 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019  2019  2018 

 Rs.  Rs. 

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Current Income Tax Provision 24.1 -                            -                         

Deferred Tax Charge for the Year 14 -                            (190,386,471)         

Deferred Tax Charge against other comprehensive income 9,480,074                 (11,277,160)           

9,480,074                 (201,663,631)         

24.1 Accounting Profit Before Taxation (683,449,491)         

Less: Income Considered Separately (134,684,332)         

Profit from Trade or Business -                            (818,133,823)         

Less:

Business (Loss)/Profit Applicable Taxation -                         

Tax Rate 14%

Exempt Other Income -                         

Liable Other Income 134,684,332           

Tax Rate 14%

Tax on Chargeable Profit or Income 13,982,705             

Tax Effect on Deductions (13,982,705)           

Provision for the Year (Tax on Adjusted Income) -                            -                         

25 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINERY SHARE

 2019  2018 

 Rs.  Rs. 

Net Profit/(loss) Attributable to Ordinary Shares (872,194,622)            (481,785,860)         

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Share 31,945,406               31,945,406             

(27.30)                       (15.08)                    

25.1 Diluted Earnings Per Share

Net allowable and Disallowable Eexpenses for Tax 

Purpose

31

There is no potentially diluted ordinary share of the company and as a result, the diluted earnings per share is the same as

basic earnings (loss) per share as shown above.

Basic Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

(1,450,464,440)      



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

26 UNRECOGNIZED CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

27.1 Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as at the reporting date.  

27.2 Contingent Assets

There are no contingent assets as at the reporting date.

28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

28.1 Substantial Shareholding and Ultimate Ownership

28.2 Key Management Personnel Information

For the Year 

Ended

For the Year 

Ended31st December 31st December 

2019 2018

Short-term employee benefits               3,957,907               5,545,434 

28.3 Related Party Transactions

29 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

There have been no capital commitments contracted but not provided for, or authorized by the board

but not contracted for, outstanding as at the reporting date except as detailed below.

As per the declaration made by the directors of the company, there were no significant related party transactions

taken place throughout the period which would require to be disclosed as per Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

32

Comparative figures have been re-classified where necessary in line with the presentation requirements for the 

current year.

The company is a wholly owned government enterprise, which holds 100% ordinary shares of the

company. 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the company as well as its related parties, directly or

indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the company.

The remunaration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as 

follows:



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

30 ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERALS

Following assets have been pledged as security against loans

Balance Balance

Loan / Outstanding Outstanding

Nature of Liabilities Facility As At As At

The Name of Granted 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Bank Rs. Rs. Rs. Repayment

Loan granted by Bank of Ceylon 700,000,000            11,666,500           186,666,520              Repayable in 120 equal monthly instalments of

Rs.5,833,335/-

Fixed Deposits Amounting US$ 2,920,652.78 of Bank of

Ceylon.

Loan granted by Bank of Ceylon 120,000,000            45,000,000           75,000,000                Repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments of

Rs.2,500,000/-

Fixed Deposits Amounting US$ 2,920,652.78 of Bank of

Ceylon.

Loan granted by Central Finance 12,484,000              47                         19,547                       Linear ice cream cup and cone filler with accessories

600,000,000            629,192,300         597,682,334              On Demand

139,500,000            187,669,547         181,026,572              On Demand Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 155,000,000.

Post Dated Cheque discounting facility 

provided by Bank of Ceylon
75,000,000              58,983,395           85,545                       

 On Demand Lodgment of Trade related Post dated Cheques.

Post Dated Cheque discounting facility 

provid by Pan Asia Bank
300,000,000            100,000,000         75,805,603                

 On Demand Lodgment of Trade related Post dated Cheques.

100,000,000            100,000,000         -                              On Demand 

Assets Pledged

Stock in trade movables and effect of the obligation including

stocks of packing materials and finished goods and other

moveable property lying in and upon or stored at No. 45,

Nawala Road, Narahenpita in the district of Colombo, Western

Province and present and or future book debts of the company.

Bank Overdraft facility provided by 

People's Bank

Bank Overdraft facility provided by Bank 

of Ceylon

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments of Rs.319,586/-

at the first 48 months and Rs. 4,998/- per month for

the rest.

Bank Overdraft facility provided by by Pan 

Asia Bank

Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 50,000,000 and lodgment of 

Trade related Post dated Cheques.

33



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

31 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Accordingly, approval was grant to;

a. convert the loan on-lent to Milco (Pvt) Ltd, as equity contribution of General Treasury.

b. waive off the outstanding loan interest as at 31.12.2020

32 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.1 Fair Value of the Financial Instrument Carried at Amortized Cost

Carrying

 Amount Fair Value

 Rs.  Rs. 

Financial Assets

787,696,142        787,696,142        

1,031,587,670     1,031,587,670     

Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,814,551          12,814,551          

Total Financial Assets 1,832,098,363     1,832,098,363     

Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 723,395,542        723,395,542        

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 254,477,181        254,477,181        

Payable to the Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka 18,414,496,875   18,414,496,875   

Bank Overdraft 1,400,837,901     1,400,837,901     

Total Financial Liabilities 20,793,207,498   20,793,207,498   

34

There have been no material events that occurred between the reporting date and the date on which

the financial statements were authorized for issue that require adjustments to, or disclosures in the

Financial Statements, except following. 

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the company's

financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not

include the fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities.

Financial Instrument - Amortised cost

Trade and Other Receivables

Cabinet paper no. 21/0199/323/012 dated 11.01.2021, presented by the Ministry of Agriculture on

"Modernization project of Polonnaruwa, Ambewela and Digana dairy factories" was approved by

the cabinet on 08.02.2021.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

32.1 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Carried at Fair Value

Assets for which fair Value Approximate Carrying Value

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

33.1 Introduction

Risk Management Framework

Principal Financial Instruments

Instrument

·  Cash and Cash Equivalents

·  Trade and Other Payables

·  Bank Overdrafts

33.2 Credit Risk – Default Risk

·  Bank Loans

Credit risk is risk arising due to the uncertainty in counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations. The

risk of loss of principal or loss of a financial reward stemming from a borrower's failure to repay a

loan or otherwise meets a contractual obligation.

35

For the financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity, it is assumed that the

carrying amounts approximate their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits

and call deposits without a specific maturity period.

Risk is inherent in the company’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of

risk management is critical to the company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the

company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the

company’s risk management framework. The Board has delegated its authority to its key

management personnel who are responsible for developing and monitoring company’s risk

management policies. 

The principal financial instruments used by the company, from which financial instrument risk

arises, are as follows:

·  Trade Receivables 

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those

financial instruments which are not recorded at fair value in the financial statements.



MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

33.3 Liquidity Risk and Funding Management

The company’s primary objective in liquidity risk management is to ensure adequate funding for its businesses throughout market cycles.

33.3.1 Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities

 On Demand 
 Less than 

2 Months 

 2 to 12 

Months  1 to 5 Years  Over 5 Years  Total 

Company Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

-                    -                    -                    787,696,142      -                     787,696,142       

-                    1,031,587,670   -                    -                    -                     1,031,587,670    

Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,814,551        -                    -                    -                    -                     12,814,551         

Total Financial Assets 12,814,551        1,031,587,670   -                    787,696,142      -                     1,832,098,363    

Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables -                    723,395,542      -                    -                    -                     723,395,542       

-                    28,661,075        118,316,270      107,499,836      -                     254,477,181       

-                    -                    -                    -                    18,414,496,875  18,414,496,875  

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                     

Bank Overdraft 1,400,837,901   -                    -                    -                    -                     1,400,837,901    

Total Financial Liabilities 1,400,837,901   752,056,617      118,316,270      107,499,836      18,414,496,875  20,793,207,498  

(1,388,023,349)  279,531,053      (118,316,270)     680,196,306      (18,414,496,875) (18,961,109,135) 

33.4 Interest Rate Risk

As of the reporting date, the company has no interest rate sensitive financial assets or financial liabilities.

36

Interest rate risk is a key constitute of the market risk exposure of the company due to adverse and unanticipated movements in future interest rate which arises

from core business activities; granting of credit facilities, accepting deposits and issuing debt instruments.

Liquidity risk refers to the possibility of company not having sufficient cash to meet its payment obligations. This arises primarily due to mismatches in the

maturity profile of company’s assets and liabilities. Adequate liquidity is critical to meet the company’s financial commitment and to accommodate additional

funding needs of the growing business volumes.

Financial Instrument - Held to Maturity

Trade and Other Receivables

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Payable to the Treasury of Government 

of Sri Lanka

Total Net Financial Assets/ 

(Liabilities) 



 31st December,  31st December, 

2019 2018

Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue 10,313,820,273    11,612,344,021      

Cost of Sales I (9,917,539,530)     (11,385,405,568)     

Gross Profit 396,280,743         226,938,453           

Other Operating Income II 29,709,723           366,304,291           

425,990,466         593,242,745           

Administrative Expenses III (688,427,005)        (640,583,272)          

Distribution Expenses IV (399,206,715)        (475,008,669)          

Other Expenses V (55,158,791)          (18,071,620)            

Profit/ (Loss) from Operations (716,802,045)        (540,420,816)          

Finance Income VI 49,926,845           46,135,691             

Finance Expenses VII (195,839,348)        (189,164,365)          

Net Profit/ (Loss) Before Taxation (862,714,548)        (683,449,491)          

Income Tax Expenses (9,480,074)            201,663,631           

Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year after Taxation (872,194,622)        (481,785,860)          
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MILCO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
ST

 DECEMBER, 2018

 For the Year 

Ended 

 For the Year 

Ended 



MILCO (PVT) LTD 

DETAIL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
ST

 DECEMBER, 2018

 For the Year 

Ended 

 For the Year 

Ended 

31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

I. COST OF SALES

Cost of Purchase of Raw Milk 4,629,414,135     6,254,217,942    

Chilling Cost 425,531,416        421,442,468       

Development Cost 260,485,819        288,963,699       

Bowser Cost 247,967,584        294,113,152       

Net Stock Adjustments on Raw Materials 488,424               605,463              

Cost of Other Raw Materials 1,099,619,705     968,969,461       

Total Cost of Raw Materials 6,663,507,082     8,228,312,184    

Cost of Packing Materials 1,313,757,788     1,131,363,981    

Cost of Processing and Packing Labor 552,336,471        470,948,130       

Prime Cost 8,529,601,341     9,830,624,295    

Energy Cost

Furnace Oil 329,252,004        377,083,401       

Electricity 141,676,555        132,079,297       

Diesel 55,173,113          98,022,919         

Water 22,103,605          25,782,779         

Other Energy Cost 92,153                 56,439                

Total Energy Cost 548,297,430        633,024,835       

Other Consumables

Lab Chemicals 10,615,442          11,693,558         

Detergent & Cleaning Material 68,056,539          66,220,434         

Wages and Staff Welfare of Factory Staff 355,224,055        279,215,650       

Marginal Cost 9,511,794,807     10,820,778,773  

Factory Overheads

Depreciation of Plant and Machinery 459,788,527        459,494,249       

Repairs and Maintenance of Plant and Machinery 194,149,607        195,496,533       

Repairs and Maintenance of Buildings 9,643,643            22,053,156         

Transport 3,591,535            2,128,738           

Insurance 30,730,303          29,049,708         

Total Factory Overheads 697,903,615        708,222,383       

Total Cost of Production 10,209,698,421   11,529,001,156  

Net Stock/ Transfer Adjustments on Finish Goods (224,638,837)       (224,449,597)      

Adjustment for Changes in Actuary Assumption (67,714,812)         80,551,142         

Unrealised profit adjustment 194,758               302,867              

9,917,539,530     11,385,405,568  
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31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

II. OTHER INCOME

Surcharges on Returned Cheques 6,415,722            11,213,726         

Non Refundable Deposit 42,500                 142,000              

Non Refundable tender Deposit 513,000               1,395,837           

Subsidy on Milk Powder Sales -                       212,222,190       

Differed Income 12,632,398          19,757,115         

Registration of Suppliers 3,572,000            2,881,000           

Sundry Income 2,226,434            231,951              

Exchange Gain -                       88,548,642         

Fines & Surcharges 1,159,556            645,893              

House Rent 1,782,804            1,421,552           

Sale of Unserviceable Items 579,231               1,306,862           

Disposal gain 566,035               12,600,907         

Margin on Liquid Milk Sale 220,042               13,936,616         

 29,709,723          366,304,291       

III. PERSONNEL EXPENSES 

Staff Salaries 229,043,057        225,812,029       

Staff Allowances 13,608,970          18,625,959         

Contributions to Employees' Provident Fund 21,496,286          20,783,117         

Contributions to Employees' Trust Fund 5,360,949            5,205,863           

Provision for Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity 40,298,106          903,430              

Overtime 13,037,938          12,065,910         

Staff Bonus 13,952,543          10,276,133         

Casual Wages 1,781,277            2,931,757           

Overtime 22,200                 23,800                

E.P.F. 10,720                 12,443                

E.T.F. 2,680                   3,111                  

Incentives 1,220,359            1,315,510           

Leave Payment 10,330,764          14,624,543         

Transport Allowance 3,853,696            3,192,222           

Fuel Allowances 1,235,848            1,563,935           

Staff Training 671,600               1,113,450           

Medical expenses 1,982,018            2,408,865           

Death Donation 280,000               150,000              

Gift Vouchers 350,378               364,146              

Staff Welfare 13,497,107          13,926,488         

Mid day Allowance 359,010               490,721              

Field Allowance                                             560,600               562,050              

Uniform 243,935               54,157                

Telephone Allowances 123,500               195,166              

373,323,541        336,604,805       
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 For the Year 

Ended 

 For the Year 

Ended 



For the Year 

Ended

For the Year 

Ended

31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

III.I ADMINISTRATION AND ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES 

Repairs and Maintenance                          38,610,720          40,141,160         

Directors Expense 6,518,158            7,640,118           

Travelling 9,923,389            7,014,862           

Garden Maintains 11,617,039          12,323,610         

Bank Charges 2,685,539            2,858,392           

Bungalow Expenses 1,480,378            1,738,269           

Quality Control Expenses 1,622,190            2,253,062           

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 29,342,782          34,457,858         

Legal Charges 4,982,320            3,538,723           

Printing and Stationary 12,495,734          10,549,616         

Security Charges 54,222,339          54,228,567         

PEST control 556,800               122,400              

Sundry Expenses 1,011,907            3,898,369           

Electricity expenses 13,900,139          13,012,863         

Water expenses 718,818               679,352              

Rent & Rates 20,959,813          20,695,776         

Stamp Expenses 16,826                 (7,915)                 

Postege Expenses 338,883               385,724              

Advertisment 546,171               688,210              

News Papers & Periodicals 524,480               528,010              

Vehicle License 359,693               145,895              

Vehicle Hiring 3,484,858            2,677,101           

Accounting & Auditing expenses 8,628,939            9,970,428           

Consultancy Charges 5,656,123            4,943,731           

Insurance 28,002,155          15,318,689         

Fuel Expenses 29,320,421          31,840,428         

DESMI Project Expenses 3,004,165            -                      

Telephones Expenses 5,480,713            6,995,889           

ESC - Write Off 15,364,873          12,434,370         

Other Expense 94,511                 983,153              

Entertainment Expenses 1,066,002            904,242              

Stud Bull Project -                       661,016              

Non Refundable Deposits -                       356,500              

Exchange loss 2,566,588            -                      

315,103,463        303,978,467       

Total Administration Expenses 688,427,005        640,583,272       
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Ended

For the Year 

Ended

31st December, 31st December,

2019 2018

Rs. Rs.

IV. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Advertisements and Sales Promotion 68,377,727          83,447,686         

Transport Expenses 115,743,779        135,416,772       

Sales Commission 28,282,771          58,593,641         

Warehousing Chargers 8,948,457            22,690,119         

Vehicle hiring chargers 40,137,026          40,534,143         

Out Let Expense 124,688,644        106,614,058       

Repair & Maintanance of Motor Vehicle 476,827               14,903                

Repairs & Maintenance of Bottle Coolers 63,266                 48,383                

Fuel 731,999               1,014,951           

Free issues and write off of Finish Goods 11,756,219          26,634,013         

399,206,715        475,008,669       

V. OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on Milk Transfers 15,057,783         

Stock write-off- Finish goods 47,180,280          3,013,837           

Discarded Milk

Stock write-off- Raw & packing materials 7,978,511            -                      

55,158,791          18,071,620         

VI. FINANCE  INCOME

Interest on call/fixed deposit 19,930,044          18,586,884         

Interest on Fixed Deposit - Foreign Currency (USD) 23,178,274          20,727,052         

Interest on Distress Loan 6,453,526            6,512,797           

Interest on Motor Cycle Loan 204,218               202,634              

Interest on Flood Loans -                      

Interest on Special Loan 160,782               106,324              

49,926,845          46,135,691         

VII. FINANCE  COSTS

Interest on Bank Overdrafts 152,362,290        144,433,083       

Lease Interest 5,218,823            6,668,083           

Loan Interest 38,258,234          38,063,199         

195,839,348        189,164,365       

38


